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Financial Highlights

2002 2003 % Change

HK$ million
Turnover 2,137.8 2,755.8 +28.9
Gross profit 153.8 219.1 +42.5
Operating profit 19.9 77.0 +286.9
Profit attributable to shareholders 10.1 60.4 +498.0
Total assets 986.2 1,418.7 +43.9
Shareholders’ equity/Net assets 523.3 520.4 -0.6

Per Share Data
HK cents
Basic earnings 2.8 17.4 +521.4
Diluted earnings 2.8 17.3 +517.9
Total cash dividends 2.6 5.8 +123.1
Shareholders’ equity 147.4 166.7 +13.1

Financial Ratios
Gross profit margin (%) 7.19 7.95 +10.6
Net profit margin (%) 0.47 2.19 +366.0
Current ratio 1.73 1.39 -19.7
Quick ratio 1.25 0.95 -24.0
Gearing ratio 0.50 1.17 +134.0
Interest cover 2.51 6.91 +175.3
Cash dividend payout (%) 91.3 30.0 -67.1

Definitions

Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to shareholders

Weighted average number of shares

Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to shareholders

Diluted weighted average number of shares

Shareholders’ equity per share
Shareholders’ equity

Number of shares as at year end

Gross profit margin (%)
Gross profit

x 100%
Turnover

Net profit margin (%)
Profit attributable to shareholders

x 100%
Turnover

Current ratio
Current assets

Current liabilities

Quick ratio
Current assets excluding inventories

Current liabilities

Gearing ratio
Interest bearing short-term borrowings and long-term bank loan

Shareholders’ equity

Interest cover
Operating profit

Finance cost

Cash dividend payout (%)
Total cash dividends proposed for the year

x 100%
Profit attributable to shareholders

Financial Highlights
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Turnover
for the years ended 31st March

Profit Attributable to Shareholders
for the years ended 31st March

Operating Profit
for the years ended 31st March

(Note 1)

Shareholders’ Equity Per Share
as at 31st March

Turnover/Segment Result by Business Segment
for the year ended 31st March 2003

Turnover/Segment Result by Geographical Segment
for the year ended 31st March 2003

Note:

1. Figures in prior years have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

HK$ million HK$ million

HK$ million HK cents

China Advanced
Materials Processing

17.14%
47.32%

Construction
Materials Group

82.72%
52.42%

Other operations
0.14%
0.26%

Segment ResultTurnover

Mainland China
53.59%
58.26%

Hong Kong
46.41%
41.74%

Segment ResultTurnover
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13th Proof FILE: E_0305044Summary / DATE: 19-06-2003 / JOB NO: 0305044(M)-04(ce) /  SIZE: 210mm(W) X 285mm(H)

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated accounts of Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited

(the “Company” or “VSC”) and its subsidiaries (together the “VSC Group”) for the respective years as

hereunder stated.

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS

Years ended 31st March

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1)

Turnover 1,842,262 1,900,945 2,376,451 2,137,845 2,755,769

Operating profit 96,807 91,714 311,953 19,888 77,049

Finance cost (15,358) (14,907) (11,732) (7,908) (11,144)

Share of (loss) profit

of associates (1,980) 2 89 (88) —

Profit before taxation 79,469 76,809 300,310 11,892 65,905

Taxation (13,610) (19,294) (15,533) (760) (2,164)

Profit before minority

interests 65,859 57,515 284,777 11,132 63,741

Minority interests 1,121 (2,150) 1,059 (1,022) (3,329)

Profit attributable

to shareholders 66,980 55,365 285,836 10,110 60,412

Dividends (Note 2) 21,387 29,930 400,391 9,230 18,111

Notes:

1. Certain prior years’ figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

2. For the year ended 31st March 2000, there was also a bonus issue of warrant dividend in the ratio of one

warrant for every five shares in addition to the cash dividends. Such warrants were expired on 16th February

2002. For the year ended 31st March 2001, dividend in specie of shares in iSteelAsia.com Limited (“iSteelAsia”)

worth approximately HK$308 million was distributed on the basis of 1,562 shares of iSteelAsia for VSC’s

shareholders holding 2,000 shares in VSC in addition to the cash dividends. For the year ended 31st March

2002, there was also a bonus issue of warrant dividend in the ratio of one warrant for every ten shares in

addition to the cash dividends. Such warrants will be expired on 18th November 2004. All other dividends

were settled in cash.

Five Years Financial Summary
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As at 31st March

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Property, plant

and equipment 94,940 130,985 86,296 123,248 125,789

Investment properties 38,480 36,800 31,340 32,500 31,000

Website development costs — 3,762 — — —

Investment in associates 22,282 18,561 90 2 2

Long-term investments 5,519 12,700 87,431 32,561 45,711

Goodwill — 24,877 — 6,474 4,624

Current assets 636,057 1,016,311 716,257 791,401 1,211,578

Current liabilities (335,023) (619,227) (259,665) (458,053) (871,073)

Long-term bank loan,

non-current portion — — — — (20,475)

Deferred taxation (863) (1,497) (2,070) (250) (250)

Minority interests (2,429) (4,289) (2,921) (4,573) (6,502)

Net assets 458,963 618,983 656,758 523,310 520,404

Representing:

Share capital 29,704 34,088 35,529 35,498 31,226

Reserves 429,259 584,895 621,229 487,812 489,178

Shareholders’ equity 458,963 618,983 656,758 523,310 520,404
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Chairman’s
Statement

In both the global and local scene, the year 2002

was a difficult year for most industries. While the

worldwide economy recovered gradually in the

middle of the year, the situation worsened again

in the second half and was dampened by the geo-

political tension in the Middle East region. Locally,

the first few months of 2003 were adversely

affected by the Sars outbreak. Business and

individual expenditures were significantly

restrained under such a clouded economic

outlook. However, through continuous effort and

dedication, VSC still managed to improve its

performance and earnings under such an adverse

and turbulent operating environment.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
VSC’s results for fiscal 2002/03 have demonstrated

its resilience in a year marked by the successful

change in the business model to emphasise on

industrial processing and the China market.

Consolidated turnover rose by 28.9% to HK$2,756

million and profit attributable to shareholders

amounted to HK$60.4 million, almost fivefold of

last year. Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) was

HK17.4 cents.

Against  such an adverse backdrop,  the

management of VSC still holds shareholders’

interest as its highest priority. A large-scale

Chairman’s Statement
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repurchase plan was undertaken by the Company

to provide liquidity to its shareholders. Given that

the pricing of such repurchase was at a significant

premium to the then market price but still at a

substantial discount to the VSC Group’s net asset

value (“NAV”), the exercise proved to be a win/

win scenario for both the VSC Group and its

shareholders. Both NAV per share and EPS of the

VSC Group were improved by the exercise, while

the VSC Group’s shareholders were given a

chance to benefit from some liquidity under very

“bearish” market sentiment.

Subsequent to the restructuring undertaken by

the VSC Group during the previous financial year,

VSC’s business was divided into two distinct

operations: China Advanced Materials Processing

(“CAMP”) and Construction Materials Group

(“CMG”). CAMP has achieved very encouraging

pe r fo rmance  th rough  much  imp roved

profitability, which in turn improved the VSC

Group’s overall performance for the year under

review. Turnover and gross profit generated from

CAMP amounted to HK$472 million and HK$94

million, contributing approximately 17% and

43% of the total turnover and gross profit,

respectively. This achievement has successfully

transformed VSC from a pure construction

materials supplier in the local Hong Kong market

to a leading industrial company in the Mainland

China.

INDUSTRY LEAD BUSINESS MODEL
China Advanced Materials Processing

(“CAMP”)

Anticipating the rising demand and potential for

steel processing service in China, the VSC Group

embarked on the industrial processing business

in 1995 with the first coil centre established in

Dongguan, the People’s Republic of China

(“PRC”), serving customers who are mostly OEM

manufacturers of renowned consumer brands

located in southern China. Our experiences in

establishing the Dongguan coil centre, has helped

lay a solid foundation from which VSC has

expanded the industrial business and seen the

setting up of four service centres in the PRC

during the subsequent years. Currently, under the

VSC Group’s CAMP operations, there are, through

wholly-owned or joint ventures structures, five

processing plants that are strategically located in

China and are in operation—three wholly-owned

in Dongguan, Tianjin and Shenzhen and two

partnerships in Nansha and Beijing, serving the

industrially flourished northeastern and southern

China regions.

Apart from targeting the traditional OEM white

goods manufacturers, the two processing centres

in Beijing and Tianjin will also be processing high

quality steel products targeting the construction

and  au tomob i l e  i ndus t r i e s  w i th in  the

northeastern region.

To better focus on the rapidly growing business,

CAMP was set up to oversee the VSC Group’s

industrial business in China. The division with its

separate management structure is responsible for

the overall strategic planning, operation and

coordination of all present and future service

centres.

Apart from the steel processing services, the VSC

Group also provides an efficient logistic service

which helps customers achieve just-in-time

inventory level. Our responsive and premium

logistics and after-sales services have further

strengthened the VSC Group’s competitiveness

and position in the marketplace.

Chairman’s Statement
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Construction Materials Group (“CMG”)

CMG is an established business providing stable

incomes to the VSC Group. Founded in 1961, VSC

is now one of the top stockholders and

distributors of construction materials in Hong

Kong, supplying quality and various types of

construction materials and building products to

developers mainly in China and Hong Kong. In

order to achieve a diversified market mix and to

minimise the risk of over reliance on any single

market, the VSC Group has actively explored

business opportunities in nearby regions, such as

Macau and the Pearl River Delta region. The

results from these regions have so far been

encouraging.

In addition to the trading business, CMG also

expanded its business scope to work with other

international groups in offering and importing

advanced construction equipment and techniques

to China, e.g. piling. Riding on its market leader

position, established network and reputation,

CMG recorded an increase of 30.4% in turnover

to HK$2,280 million over the last year.

In view of the continuing increase in demand for

high quality steel and economic growth in China,

we expect the stable contribution from CMG to

continue in the future.

PROSPECTS
After decades of hard work and with the help of

various professionals and advisors, VSC has

established a strong foothold in the steel industry

and built a worldwide business network. Going

forward,  we wi l l  capita l i se on our core

competencies of value-added processing, global

network and supply chain management expertise

to further develop our business in the burgeoning

China market and consolidate our market

position.

With the accession of China into the WTO and

the dynamic changes in the global economy, the

VSC Group must take the step to embrace

opportunities arising through globalisation. For

the last two years, the VSC Group has undergone

many se l f -eva luat ion,  rest ructur ing and

repositioning of its resources towards this end.

The following are several key parameters that the

VSC Group will focus its diversification efforts on

to optimise usage of resources.
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Tap the Strongest Growing Economy

China has been and will be our focus. Turnover

generated from the China market amounted to

HK$1,477 million in fiscal 2002/03, representing

54% of the total turnover as compared to 49%

or HK$1,038 million in fiscal 2001/02. The

increase in turnover from the China market is

further evidence that VSC is aiming at one of the

world’s fastest growing and emerging market,

China. We believe the China operations, CAMP

and the distribution business will become the VSC

Group’s growth engines in the coming years.

China is now the world’s largest steel producer,

consumer and importer. At times referred to as

“the factory of the world”, China’s finished steel

apparent consumption amounted to 186 million

metric tonnes in 2002 and is projected to increase

to 211 million metric tones in 2007.

According to statistics in developed countries such

as the US, approximately 85% of steel is

processed and provided by service centres while

the ratio in China is currently only around 15%.

This comparatively low penetration ratio opens

the way for VSC to exploit business opportunities

and expand. Moreover, steel is an essential and

basic material for many industries. The rule of

thumb, observed through years of trading in the

steel industry, shows that a 1% of GDP growth

will lead to a 1% growth in demand for steel.

With robust economic growth expected to be

approximately 7% per annum, China’s demand

for steel is expected to thrive.

Target the Strongest Growing Sectors

Our strategy is to target the four fast growing

steel-oriented industries in the PRC, namely

information technology and telecommunications,

home appliances, construction and automobile

parts industry. All of them enjoyed high growth

along with GDP growth and are expected to grow

continuously in line with the rising consumer

spending as a result of better living standards.

As our service centres are strategically located in

industrial hubs such as south and northeastern

China for manufacturing centres of information

technology and telecommunications products,

automobile and home appliances, we are well

positioned to capture the rising demand.

Offer High Value-Added Processing Service

In order to enable the VSC Group to penetrate

its intended target markets, we intend to set up

a chain of professionally managed steel service

centres in various strategic locations in China,

providing high quality value-added processing

service and international standard products.

Expand Market Coverage — The Beijing joint

venture with the Beijing Shougang Group is

principally engaged in the production of pre-

painted galvanised steel sheets (“PPGI”), which

is widely used in construction. It is expected to

commence production in late 2003. The joint

venture is well-timed to capture the growth of

the flourishing property market of China and

construction boom triggered by the 2008 Olympic

Games and 2010 World Expo. Further, the Tianjin

plant will commence operation in June 2003

serving the northeastern market.
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Enrich Product Offering — In order to differentiate

ourselves from the market, we will emphasise on

providing high quality products of an international

standard which the domestic production standard

is  not suff ic ient to meet the increas ing

expectation and requirement. Under the current

steel import quota system, demand for premium

quality domestic products of import quality is

highly desirable. With greater processing

capability and international standard products,

VSC will be able to cater to the needs of its target

customers.

Enhance Distribution Network

Distribution and logistics management are our

strengths. We will continue to develop and refine

our distribution network in China and sourcing

network globally. With a worldwide business

network and knowledge in logistics management,

VSC has been able to establish and manage an

efficient global supply chain, sourcing and

delivering high quality materials to customers in

a timely manner. Currently, we, in conjunction

with the iSteelAsia Group, operate nine offices

spanning across China and intend to set up more

offices to further enhance the distribution and

processing networks.

Leveraging on purchasing advantage, global

supply chain management expertise, and a variety

of steel and multiple processing capabilities, the

VSC Group will be able to cater to the needs of

different industries. For better planning and

service to customers, a regional headquarter will

be set up in Shanghai in June this year to oversee

operations in China.

People is Our Resources

To s t rengthen the  operat ions ,  a  Va lue

Enhancement Team, comprising management

from each business unit, was set up to review

the VSC Group’s performance on a regular basis.

The VSC Group also adopts the Total Cycle Time

(“TCT”) Methodology that helps further improve

our performance in resources management and

operation efficiency. Furthermore, the Oracle ERP

system is applied as the backbone of the VSC

Group’s information technology structure to allow

more accurate real time information flow,

resulting in better resources management and

lower reporting costs. These measures will be

continued to better strengthen and equip VSC

to meet its future challenges.
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Our team of professionals is built upon core values

highlighting teamwork and people, customer first

and continuous improvement. These values are

deeply rooted in our culture and aimed to create

values for customers whilst delivering returns to

shareholders.

VSC strives to be the best total solution provider

for materials in the China market through global

supply chain management and value-added

processing.

APPRECIATION
I would like to thank the Board of Directors and

staff for their dedication and hard work, and

shareholders and business associates for their

continuous support and guidance that brings the

success today.

Yao Cho Fai, Andrew

Chairman & CEO

10th June 2003

Van Shung Chong
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Management
Discussion and Analysis

(A) CHINA ADVANCED MATERIALS
PROCESSING (“CAMP”)
In order to better consolidate its business
and facilitate a clearer organisation and
operational structure, the management of
the VSC Group decided to rename its
Industrial Products Group as “CAMP”. The
new name better reflects the VSC Group’s
focus and efforts on targeting a niche part
of the market, namely the provision of steel
and related materials processing services to
the industrial manufacturers in Mainland
China.  Under the new organisat ion
structure, the VSC Group’s CAMP operations
cover three business units, 1) its coil centre
operations in Dongguan, T ianjin and
Nansha,  which prov ide ro l led s tee l
processing services to various manufacturing

industr ies of white goods, electr ical
appliances and computers in the respective
regions; 2) the manufacturing of customised
enclosure systems in Shenzhen, which
carries out a variety of precision metal
processing services like punching, bending,
c o a t i n g  a n d  a s s e m b l y  f o r  t h e
telecommunication, automobile and other
industries; and 3) the distribution of
engineering plastic resins and injection
m o u l d i n g  m a c h i n e s  t o  i n d u s t r i a l
manufacturers of household appliances,
audio/video equipments, telecommunication
applications and computers located in
China. All these business units’ value
proposition centres around one theme —
adding value to the supply chain in the
se lected h igh-growth indust r ies  by

Management Discussion and Analysis
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posit ioning as a crucial intermediary
between the raw materials suppliers and
downstream industrial manufacturers. Over
the past decades, China has established
itself as a manufacturing hub of the world.
With an abundant supply of relatively cheap
labour and vast market potential to lure
foreign investors, the country has achieved
rapid growth to become one of the major
workshops in the global manufacturing
system. It is expected that the CAMP
operations will gradually become a more
prominent profit engine of the VSC Group
and will be the focus of the VSC Group’s
business development. For 2002/03,
approximately 17% and 43% of the total
turnover and gross profit, respectively of the
VSC Group were attributable to its CAMP
operations.

1. Coil Centre Operations
The coil centre operations of the VSC Group
include its two wholly-owned factories in
Dongguan and Tianjin as well as its 14%
investment in the joint venture company in
Nansha. All three coil centres carry out or
will be carrying out the processing of large
steel coils such as slitting, cutting and
leveling into smaller steel coils or flat sheets.
These end products processed to the shape
and quantity as specified by the customers
are delivered just-in-time to the customers’
production lines for their manufacturing of
various industrial products. The coil centre
operations enjoy a healthy profit margin by
offering a suite of value propositions to its
customers including lower inventory holding
costs through just-in-time processing, better
supply chain management through working
more closely with the customers’ operational
people, the lowering of production costs
through the reduction in raw material scrap
and materials handling costs, ensured
quality, and flexible and reliable supply.

The Dongguan coil centre, which started
in 1995, is the VSC Group’s first venture into
steel processing business. Despite the
cyclical movement of steel price, the
Dongguan coil centre continues to perform
strongly with an increase in turnover of
about 25% over the past 3 years. For the
year under review, both turnover and profit
before allocation of corporate overhead
soared to a record high of approximately
HK$277 mi l l ion and HK$57 mi l l ion,
respectively, representing a 18% and 70%
increase over the previous year. Apart from
the healthy growth and sustainable
profitability achieved by the Dongguan coil
centre, it stood out as the most profitable
operation within the VSC Group. Such
sustainable growth of profit stems from a
combination of excellence in customer
development, supply chain management
and operational process improvement. As
for customer development, the Dongguan
coil centre has successfully built a portfolio
of key customers who engage in the
production of computers and electrical
appliances and are able to provide a
significant amount of business to the coil
centre throughout the year. During 2002/
03, the top ten customers accounted for
over 50% of the total sales revenue. These
major customers are very well established
and credible Taiwan-based or Hong Kong-
based OEM located at the Pearl River Delta
region with their end products mainly
exported to the US and European markets
for end customers like Dell and Compaq.
By focusing on quality, commitment and
proactive initiatives, strong, stable and long-
term relationships have thus been forged
between the Dongguan coil centre and its
c u s t o m e r s .  A s  f o r  s u p p l y  c h a i n
management, the Dongguan coil centre
continues to obtain competitive sourcing
from large steel mills in Japan, Korea and
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Taiwan. Together with the high volume
purchasing of steel coils distribution of the
iSteelAsia Group, the Dongguan coil centre
is able to place bulk purchase orders at
highly competitive and favourable price and
terms as compared to other coil centre
operators. The experienced steel distribution
arm of the iSteelAsia Group also assists in
the steel procurement activity, studies the
materials requirements of the coil centre’s
customers in terms of quality and standard
and advises on the updated market price
t rend .  As  fo r  ope ra t iona l  p roces s
improvement, the Dongguan coil centre is
run by a team of local professionals
compensated by an incentive scheme that
is pegged to their ability to achieve ongoing
process improvement in various areas such
as production efficiency, quality control,
scrap reduct ion and customs book-
matching. Professional quality management
tools such as “5S program”, Total Cycle
T i m e  ( “ T C T ” )  a n d  I S O 9 0 0 0 : 2 0 0 0
accreditation are also used to maintain
production standard and efficiency. In view
of the past performances and return to the
VSC Group, the VSC Group has further

invested an additional automated slitting
machine by early 2003 to increase the
production capacity of Dongguan coil
centre.

The coil centre operation in China has
proven to be a sound and profitable business
model for the VSC Group. To further develop
its competitive edge and differentiate itself
from other stand alone coil centre operators,
the VSC Group has after an extensive market
research commenced setting up a new coil
centre operation in Tianjin towards the end
of this financial year. The Tianjin coil centre
is located at the T ianjin Economic —
Technological Development Area (“TEDA”),
and will be occupying a factory area of about
13,000 square metres. With its proximity to
Tianjin New Harbour (2 kilometres via road)
and supported through a network of
national highways, the Tianjin coil centre is
well positioned to attain high efficiency in
the inbound and outbound logist ics
arrangement. The Tianjin coil centre is also
in close vicinity to the new plant of a world-
class car manufacturer. Targeting the
industrial manufacturers in northern China,
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the Tianjin coil centre aims at serving
customers within 800 kilometres around
Bohai, covering customers in Tianjin, Beijing,
Shandong, Liaoning and Hebei. The VSC
Group is very optimistic with the investment
as its internal market research indicates that
there is strong demand of steel processing
services from industries of household
appl iances,  e lectronics  equipments ,
transformer, lift and automobile in these
regions with limited competition from a few
existing domestic coil centres. Leveraging on
the well established operational set up of
its Dongguan coil centre, the VSC Group
anticipates that it can greatly reduce the
initial set up cost and production ramp up
time in the Tianjin coil centre by transferring
the knowhow of Dongguan to this new
facility. The production is expected to
commence by the financial year 2003/04
with an initial estimated monthly output of
about one-third of the Dongguan coil
centre. The VSC Group will carry out further
market studies to explore other coil centre
opportuni t ies  in  d i fferent  s t rateg ic
manufacturing regions in China, for example
areas like Shanghai or Guangzhou where
both have strong demand in the steel
processing services.

The VSC Group’s 14% investment in
Baosteel Jingchang joint venture in
Nansha also recorded similar satisfactory
results in its fourth year of operation. Annual

sales of the joint venture continued to rise
to over RMB250 million and exceeded
60,000 metric tonnes in tonnage for the year
2002. Profitability was also improved by
more efficient productivity, customer
services and quality control. Net profit for
the financial year under review thus reached
approximately RMB4 million and dividend
received based on distributable profit
amounted to about RMB0.2 mil l ion.
Although the VSC Group’s involvement is
purely as a small minority investor, the VSC
Group in  re turn  ga ined inva luab le
experience from its two partners, the
Shanghai Baosteel Group and Japan Mitsui
Group. Targeting the growing demand of
processed steel in the Pearl River Delta
region from customers who are engaged in
electrical appliances and automobile parts,
the Nansha joint venture has decided to
invest about RMB12 million to expand
production area of 1,000 square metres with
the addition of new machineries. The new
capital expenditure will be financed by the
joint venture with its own internal resources
and does not require additional investment
from the VSC Group. It is expected that after
the completion of the new production line
by the end of 2003, the annual production
capacity can be raised by 80% or 50,000
metric tonnes to a total of 110,000 metric
tonnes annually, further enhancing the
company’s competitiveness in the market.
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2. Enclosure Systems Manufacturing
T h e  V J Y  e n c l o s u r e  s y s t e m s
manufacturing (“VJY”) is expected to be
another high-growth unit of the VSC
Group’s CAMP operations. Unlike the
Dongguan and Tianjin coil centres, VJY
moves further downstream to provide
prec is ion and comprehens ive (some
assembly operation included) steel and
metal processing services. Equipped with
advanced Germany “Trumpf” punching and
bending machines as well as assembly lines
with automatic powder and paint spray, VJY
f o c u s e s  o n  s e r v i n g  w e l l - k n o w n
telecommunication customers including
Huawei, Zhongxing and Emerson Electric of
the US with customised enclosure systems
t o  h o u s e  t h e i r  o w n - b r a n d e d
telecommunicat ion and informat ion
technology equipments.

In the first full year of production by its new
plant at Henggang of Shenzhen, VJY has
m a d e  s a t i s f a c t o r y  p r o g r e s s  a n d
improvement in smoothing production
processes to raise capacity and efficiency.
Turnover for 2002/03 increased by sixfold
and amounted to approximately HK$40
mill ion, deriving mainly from sales of
customised enclosure systems such as

cabinets, racks, metal boxes and accessories
to the two domestic telecommunication
giants, Huawei and Zhongxing. To qualify
as the approved vendor of these customers,
VJY has to excel in manufacturing quality
and efficiency, passing the stringent audit
requirements of these customers in respect
of quality, responsiveness and technical
design. However, competition remains
strong as VJY has to compete with other
existing suppliers through an open bidding
process that consists of price, quality and
other terms. VJY manages its inventory
through monitoring the PRC and global
telecommunication market trend very closely
to give it a more accurate assessment of
demand volumes and trends. VJY has also
invested heavily in moulds for making
prototypes to shorten products development
and approval cycle time. Such one-off
investments contributed significantly to high
fixed costs for the year 2002/03 absorbed
by the turnover and a loss before allocation
of corporate overhead of approximately
HK$6 million was resulted.

VJY wi l l  cont inue to s t reaml ine i t s
production processes and vigorously
implement cost reduction measures to lower
materials costs and manufacturing expenses.
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Using key account management and the
introduction of a new sales commission
programme, VJY aims to increase its sales
to surpass the RMB100 million mark in the
coming  few yea r s  w i th  ne t  p ro f i t
contribution to the VSC Group. Sales growth
opportunities would be generated from the
existing customised enclosure systems as
well as the development of standard
cabinets for general industrial use through
appointment of distributor channels.
Capitalising on its ability to do precision
toolings, VJY has also branched out to target
the high-growth automobile industry. VJY
has secured order from Isuzu to supply over
1,000 different parts for its passenger buses.
The VSC Group intends to leverage off these
experiences to build its core competence and
team of expertise for the provision of
advanced steel and metal processing services
in automobile parts manufacturing.

3. Plastics and Machinery Distribution
The VSC Group’s third business unit under
its CAMP operations is the distribution of a
full range of engineering plastic resins and
injection moulding machinery. Serving
mainly the industrial manufacturers in
southern China, this business unit has
enjoyed cross-selling synergy with another
CAMP operation, Dongguan coil centre, in
sharing similar customer portfolio.

For the year under review, the plastics
division recorded a slight 9.4% increase in
turnover to approximately HK$149 million
and achieved profit before allocation of
corporate overhead of approximately HK$7
million. The division has expanded the
customer base by providing logistics and
technical support solutions to satisfy the
customers’ sourcing needs. The VSC Group
also works closely with its new suppliers
such as Samsung and Mitsubishi to promote
their resins by providing feedback on market
trends and customers’ requirements. After
a careful assessment of the market potential
and corresponding distribution channel, the
division decided to restructure its effort in
penetrat ing the domest ic market in
Mainland China and as a result withdrew
from its local partnership in Shunde during
the year. Instead, the division aims to explore
the local market by setting up a wholly-
owned trading company in Shenzhen.
Furthermore, discussion is underway with a
major supplier on securing the distribution
right of its new plastic resins compounding
factory to be opened at Dongguan. The
division also plans to grow its sales force and
engineers to meet the increasing demand
from a wider range of both Hong Kong and
domestic customers.

The machinery division recorded an
11.7% drop in revenue where profit
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cont r ibut ion  was  down by  36.6%.
Sentiment for new capital investment on
machinery, especially for the costly high-end
Japanese injection moulding machinery of
the division, is still weak under the current
tough economic environment. The division
thus received less commission and parts sales
revenue but more robot sales of relatively
lower profit margin. To combat the reduced
profitability, the division will diversify its
income stream by offering an annual
maintenance programme to its customers.

(B) CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS GROUP
(“CMG”)
After reviewing its corporate strategy, and
in light of the current economic outlook in
Hong Kong, the VSC Group decided to
restructure the scope and focus of its
construction materials businesses to expand
its CMG coverage to Mainland China to tap
the booming market potential, particularly
in major cities like Shenzhen, Shanghai and
Beijing as well as Macau where a lot of
construction works are expected to be
carried out. As such, CMG now includes
business units of the VSC Group, which are
engaged in distribution of steel products and
building products in both Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Resources are reallocated
and the internal corporate structure has

been modified to facilitate the business
expansion of CMG beyond Hong Kong. This
s t r a teg i c  move  i s  nece s sa r y  s i n ce
construction activities in Hong Kong are
expected to continue to shrink as a result of
the poor economy and weak property
market. During the year 2002/03, the
HKSAR Government announced a series of
new measures to stabilise the housing
market, including the suspension in 2003
of land auctions and of development tenders
by the two railway companies. The 70%
home ownership target set previously was
officially put to an end. These measures add
further pressure and uncertainty on both
public and private housing sectors thus
slowing any future demand of construction
materials in Hong Kong. By contrast , the
VSC Group observed a  much more
favourable market potential in Mainland
China for its CMG to thrive. The accession
into WTO by China, hosting of 2008 Olympic
Games in Beijing and 2010 World Expo by
Shanghai and new casinos and hotels
development in Macau are all potential
markets for demand of the VSC Group’s
construction materials. For 2002/03,
approximately 83% and 56% of the total
turnover and gross profit, respectively of the
VSC Group were attributable to its CMG
operations.
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1. Steel Distribution
The major business unit of the VSC Group’s
CMG operations is steel distribution, which
embodies stockholding business of rebars,
H-piles, sheet piles and related products in
Hong Kong, distribution of mainly domestic
steel products in eastern China through its
66.7% owned joint venture, Shanghai Bao
Shun Chang (“BSC”), steel distribution in
Mainland China together with its 19.2%
investment in the iSteelAsia and distribution
of colour-coated steel sheets in Beijing for
its 7.5% owned joint venture with the
Beijing Shougang Group.

Amid the challenging construction market
situation in the year under review as a result
of the marcoeconomic environment and the
previous price war among rebars suppliers in
Hong Kong, the Hong Kong steel
stockholding department finished the year
2002/03 with a 10.7% increase in turnover
and a 14.5% increase in gross profit.
Performance of the rebars stockholding
business is satisfactory given the adverse
market. Sales in both tonnage and dollar value
remained at similar level as in the prior year
while gross profit decreased by 11.3%. Using
key account management and centralised
project database, the sales team identified the
contractors and developers who are most
active in the construction industry as its top
customers. Tailor-made supports on price,
quality, delivery and communication are
rendered to these customers to help maintain
the sales volume in a declining market. The
profitability was however restricted by the low-
price sales contracts previously signed.
Currently, the department’s contracts-on-hand
totalled about HK$600 million. With the
recovery of rebars price driven up by the Iraqi
war and the global supply and demand
factors, the department aims to maintain a
sustainable profit contribution to the VSC
Group.

Encouraging progress has been made in
developing the structural steel businesses.
Both turnover and gross profit increased
significantly as the department diversifies its
products to H-piles, sheet piles, construction
beams plus other construction steel and
extends its market to Macau. This business
development is facilitated by building
necessary engineering expertise together with
selected alliance with competitive structural
steel suppliers. Demand for these products in
foundation and superstructure works in Hong
Kong, Macau and Shanghai could offer room
for higher profit margin sales growth to
compensate shrinkage in the rebars business.
The VSC Group is actively exploring to
introduce new technology into Shanghai by a
more environmental friendly piling method,
which would have huge potential application
on the old town redevelopment and the local
soil condition.

The VSC Group continued to develop a total
solution package to the construction
materials customers by its coupler and soil
nail businesses. Turnover was increased
steadily with positive profit contribution
made for the year. With the continuous
improvement in production in terms of
quality and on time delivery, the VSC Group
has gradually built its reputation to enlarge
its market share and secure a few key
customers. Sizeable jobs has been awarded,
leading to improved efficiency in purchasing
and production planning. Oracle ERP system
is also applied to automate the order
processing and inventory flow.

The VSC Group’s 66.7% joint venture with
the Shanghai Baosteel Group, BSC, has
achieved very fruitful results. Turnover rose
20.1% to approximately HK$497 million and
net profit contribution before minority
interests amounted to about HK$10 million
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for the year 2002/03. Due to the booming
economy in Mainland China, substantial
increase in steel prices during the year and
the high demand for Baosteel products, BSC
has benefited much in expanding its
distr ibution business of domestical ly
produced colour-coated steel sheets and
other flat products, thus becoming a
contributor to the CMG operations. Both
joint venture partners are encouraged by
BSC’s performance and will continue to
explore various ways to support the business
growth of BSC and from time to time to
provide the necessary funding through direct
f i n a n c i n g  a n d  b a n k  g u a r a n t e e s
arrangement.

China’s steel market has been characterised
over the past decade by demand consistently
outpacing supply. Despite being the largest
steel producer in the world, China remains a
net importer of steel with a globally leading
projection of apparent consumption of
finished steel of 192 million metric tonnes in
2003. While the Hong Kong steel market for
rebars, piles and beams is slightly over 2 million
metric tones per annum, the move of the VSC
Group to expand its steel distribution to
Mainland China will no doubt enhance the
pace of growth tremendously. Leveraging on

iSteelAsia Group’s steel distribution network
and connections in the major cities, the VSC
Group has cautiously developed the steel
distribution business by targeting reputable
end users and distributors. Turnover arising
from such distribution for 2002/03 amounted
to approximately HK$217 million and marginal
profit was recorded. Coupled with the
ongoing purchasing arrangement with the
iSteelAsia Group in which steel products of
approximately HK$287 million were sold to
the iSteelAsia Group, the VSC Group achieved
over half a billion dollar annual sales for
imported steel distribution business in China,
which helped the VSC Group to build a
business of sizeable volume with economies
of sca le on sourc ing and customer
development.

Last but not least within the year under
review, the VSC Group took a 7.5% stake
in a new Beijing joint venture company with
t h e  B e i j i n g  S h o u g a n g  G ro u p  f o r
manufacturing of colour-coated steel sheets.
The factory is expected to commence
production by late 2003. The VSC Group has
secured at least 50% distribution rights of
the f in ished products  and can a lso
participate in supplying the basic raw
materials to the joint venture. The VSC
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Group is thus well positioned to capture the
booming  demand as  in s t i tu ted  by
construction of infrastructures, stadiums,
exhibition centres and hotels for the
upcoming events of Olympic Games and
World Expo in Beijing and Shanghai.

2. Building Products
As compared to the prior year, the building
products department improved i ts
performance by a 152% increase in turnover
to approximately HK$141 million and a 70%
reduction of loss from operation, down to
approximately HK$2 million. Although the
turnover was largely increased from mainly
the progress completion of several large
kitchen cabinets installation contracts
concluded in previous year, the general weak
property  market  in  Hong Kong has
suppressed the demand in both price and
quantity of sanitary wares for project sales
and retail. As such, the department as a
whole has still not secured enough revenue
in the year under review to absorb its fixed
overheads for a profitable situation. To
address this problem, the department has
taken further init iatives to return to
profitability. On the revenue side, new sales
outlets and distribution channels in Hong
Kong and Macau have been set up to
expand sales coverage of the Toto and
Laufen sanitary wares. The marketing team
has also launched extensive advertising
programmes and campaigns subsidised by
the suppliers to raise awareness and market

penetration of the brands. The Sales team
have been revamped and offered with
higher focus on sales commission rates for
incentive. The VSC Group also obtains the
distribution rights of Toto sanitary wares on
wholesale basis in the Greater Shanghai area
as well as priority treatment in China for
project customers. A wholly-owned trading
company has been formed in Shanghai to
handle this domestic distribution business.
On cost side, various efforts are spent to
reduce operational expenses such as
streamlining manpower, centralising storage
facilities, lowering inventory level and
combining offices of headquarter and
showroom.

The department currently has contracts-on-
hand worth around HK$63 million. Major
outstanding projects include the supply and
instal lat ion of k i tchen cabinets and
bathroom sanitary wares for 16 Wylie Road,
King’s Park, Kowloon Station Package II
Phase 2, and LL8955, Sai Wan Ho. These
long-term contracts-on-hand have reduced
compared to prior years as a result of the
decision to scale down the sizeable kitchens
insta l lat ion bus iness .  The cont inual
contraction in the property market has
reduced the profitability of these types of
contracts and made them unviable after
tak ing into account  the s ign i f icant
uncertainties and risks inherent with long-
term projects. The department has thus
preferred to focus its resources on shorter-
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term projects and the supply of sanitary
wares and installation of kitchen cabinets
for individuals or projects that do not overly
burden the VSC Group’s resources.

Leisure Plus, the first retail outlet with a
showroom, opened in April 2002 and
received encouraging feedback. To attract
more shoppers, the showroom has been
extended to the ground floor of the same
building at Wanchai in early 2003. The
enlarged retail outlet will serve the objectives
of arousing market awareness, enhancing
the company image and offering an elegant
environment for targeted customers to
experience the characterist ics of our
products.

(C) OTHER INVESTMENT
On May 2002, the VSC Group increased its
equity interest in iSteelAsia.com Limited
(“iSteelAsia”) from 17.8% to 19.2%
through share swapping and the disposal
of shareholding in iMerchants Limited. The
VSC Group is delighted to observe that
iSteelAsia and its subsidiaries (together
the “iSteelAsia Group”) continues to
improve in financial performance since its
listing on the GEM Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. For the nine-month period
ended 31st December 2002, the iSteelAsia

Group recorded a turnover and profit
a t t r i b u t a b l e  t o  s h a r e h o l d e r s  o f
approximately HK$518 million and HK$7.8
million, respectively. Increase in turnover was
over 71% as compared to the corresponding
period last year and profitability was restored
from a loss-making position.

The iSteelAsia Group has expanded its steel
distribution network in Mainland China
along the major cities like Beijing, Shanghai,
Guangzhou,  T ian j in ,  Shenzhen and
Chongqing. Through this enhanced network
and focus on providing quality customer
services, the iSteelAsia Group has built
strong and coherent relationships with its
customers to achieve the aforemention
growth in turnover. Various strategies have
also been adapted to address the volatilities
of the steel market so as to improve the
profit margin, such as building up long-term
relationships with suppliers and customers
to improve the forecast of demand and
supply.

The VSC Group will, as previously agreed,
continue to source and supply steel to the
iSteelAsia Group to facilitate its expansion
of steel trading operations and obtain bulk
purchase savings by aggregating demand of
the two groups. The VSC Group wil l
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continue to monitor this investment
proactively for better business synergy
opportunities for both the VSC Group and
the iSteelAsia Group to utilise resources and
enhance business efficiency.

OPERATION REVIEW
1. Total Cycle Time (“TCT”)

The VSC Group continues to practise the
TCT methodology across all its business units
and key processes. Extensive internal
trainings are organised during the year to
internalise the knowledge and application
to staff of all functions and at all levels. We
continue to reap the benefits through the
adoption of TCT in processes such as supply
chain management, sales fulfillment, project
management, sales and marketing, and
many  more .  Suppor t ing  un i t s  l i ke
accounting, MIS and human resources
departments are all applying TCT to their
own processes to reduce cycle time, improve
f i r s t  pass  y ie ld  and cut  costs .  The
management remains committed to
adopting the following key elements of TCT
in the pursuit of business development,
namely:

1) teamwork using cross functional
teams;

2) process map approach;

3) driver measurements to achieve results
by cockpit chart;

4) barrier removal with root cause and
substitute process analysis;

5) disciplined management of action-in-
progress and effective meetings; and

6) c o n t i n u o u s  i m p r o v e m e n t  t o
entitlement.

2. Oracle Enterprise Resources Planning
(“ERP”)
Implementation of the Oracle ERP system is
in progress. The standard finance and
accounting module has been installed for

both Hong Kong and China operations for
keeping accounting books and management
reporting. A tailor-made module for banking
facilities management is used to help
m o n i t o r  t re a s u r y  f u n c t i o n .  O rd e r
management, inventory and purchasing
modules are applied to the steel distribution
business in Mainland China and the
production of couplers and soil nails in Hong
Kong. The VSC Group is also one of the few
leading organisations which runs its website
and ERP system on Linux. By using the free
Linux as its Operating System (“OS”),
savings have been made in initial investment
and recurring maintenance costs. By
investing in the ERP system, the VSC Group
aims to improve its operational efficiency of
all the business units and functions through
standardisation and automation. The other
modules of ERP system such as business
intelligence, production planning, project
management,  customer re lat ionship
management and so on, would be gradually
installed to meet the business development
progress of the VSC Group.

3. Employee and Remuneration Policies
In June 2003, the VSC Group employed 879
staff. The increase in number of employees
is mainly due to the expansion of VJY and
the new Tianjin coil centre.

Headcount Headcount
Department June 2003 June 2002
CAMP

— Coil Centres 142 120
— Enclosure Systems 580 354
— Plastics & Machinery 14 14

CMG
— Steel 43 42
— Building Products 27 26
— Shanghai Offices 22 19

Corporate Support 51 54

Total: 879 629
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Salaries and annual bonuses are determined
according to the position and performance
of the employees. The VSC Group provides
on-the-job training and training subsidies to
its employees in addition to retirement
benefit schemes and medical insurance. In-
house trainings for staff development such
as TCT certification, time management,
supervisory management, interpersonal
communication and appraisal skills are
provided to broaden the knowledge and
skills of staff. The VSC Group also organises
and sponsors various recreational activities
for its staff to foster relationships and
promote a unified family atmosphere,
including hiking, sports competit ion,
attending Boundabout, trip to Macau and
annual dinner. Total staff costs including
contribution to retirement benefit schemes
incurred during the year under review
amounted to approximately HK$66 million.
During the year under review, options to
subscribe for 10,500,000 shares have been
offered and/or granted to participants under
the new share option scheme adopted since
12th November 2001.

C O R P O R AT E  G O V E R N A N C E  &
ENHANCEMENTS TO SHAREHOLDER VALUE
The VSC Group is committed to ensuring high
standards of corporate governance in the interests
of its shareholders. As a medium size listed
company with an almost 10 year listing history,
the VSC Group has continued to evolve and
reform its corporate practices and structure to
facilitate better corporate governance, and
ultimately enhance shareholder value. In this
regard, the efforts and principles as adopted by
the VSC Group are as follows:

1) The Board and senior management —
The Board consists of four executive
directors and four non-executive directors
(of whom three are independent). The
executive directors are responsible for
managing the overa l l  bus iness  and
implementing corporate strategies. The non-
executive directors are all senior business
executives who advise the executive
directors and management on business
strategies and development. The Board has
regular whole day meetings throughout the
year with the heads of various business units
to discuss major business plans and review
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operation and financial performance.
Seasoned independent advisers with
diversified industry expertise and experience
are invited to join the meetings wherever
necessary. The executive directors together
with a team of senior management
including the Chief Operating Officer,
H u m a n  R e s o u rc e s  D i re c t o r,  C h i e f
Information Officer and Head of Marketing
form a Value Enhancement Team to regularly
meet with different business units to
monitor their performance and provide
corporate support.

2) Audit committee — The audit committee
has been set up since December 1998 and
consists of three non-executive directors (of
whom two are independent). The audit
committee meets twice a year to review and
discuss the various internal control and audit
issues. It also reviews the interim and final
financials and recommends to the Board for
approval. The VSC Group during the year
has strengthened the role of its internal audit
team and expects to solicit more advice and
input from the audit committee to further
improve its internal control system.

3) Code of best practice — The Company has
complied with the Code of Best Practice as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
throughout the accounting year covered by
the annual report, except that the non-
executive directors are not appointed for
specific terms. However, the non-executive
directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws.

4) Investor relationship and communication
— The VSC Group reckons the importance
of promoting transparency and maintaining
effective communication with investors,

analysts and press. During the year, extensive
initiatives were taken to achieve this end.
Financial public relationship firms are
appointed to arrange meetings and plant
visits for various interested investors and
analysts. The website has been completely
re vamped  w i th  de t a i l ed  company
information and announcements posted on
our websites for easy access. The VSC Group
continues to maintain a high level of
transparency in information disclosures. Its
annual report, for example, has been
mentioned by the Judges’ Report of the
HKMA Best Annual Report Awards for two
consecutive years. The 2002 annual report
was referred to in the report as one of the
few companies, which provided useful
information for investors to assess a
company’s financial health, strategies and
outlooks.

5) Share repurchase — Consistent with its
objective to enhance shareholder value, the
Company announced on November 2002 a
condit ional  vo luntary  cash offer  to
repurchase up to approximately 53.2 million
shares of the Company at an offer price of
HK$0.98 per share payable in cash. The offer
not only increases the net asset value per
share as well as earnings per share but also
provides an attractive exit mechanism for the
shareholders who wish to realise their
investments in the Company’s shares at an
attractive price without having to suffer from
a significant discount to the prevailing share
price.  The offers were subsequently
approved by the shareholders and received
overwhelmingly responses of acceptances of
about 78.2 mi l l ion shares f rom the
shareholders.
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Major Contracts of Construction Materials

Structural Building

Private Sector Rebars Steel Products

Port of Balboa Container Terminal

Hong Kong Movie City at Tseung Kwan O

Residential development at Hoi Fan Road KIL 11152

Redevelopment of Shek Pai Wan Estate, Phase 1

Superstructure works, Citybus Headquarters

and Maintenance Depot at Chai Wan

Development of Branksome II at Tregunter Path

1 Beacon Hill

Construction of Tung Chung Area 31 Phase 2

Coastal Skyline, Tung Chung Station Package II

Oscar by The Sea, Tseung Kwan O

NKIL 6338, Sham Mong Road, Lai Chi Kok

— residential development

Foundation and superstructure works for office

development at NKIL 5877, Kowloon Bay

Site formation and foundation work for residential

development at TWTL 395, Area 40 Route Kiosk,

Tsuen Wan

Olympic Station Site D at KIL 11151, Tai Kok Tsui

DHL Central Asia Hub project at Chek Lap Kok

Major Contracts of Construction Materials
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Major Contracts of Construction Materials

Structural Building

Private Sector Rebars Steel Products

Residential development at

No. 96-116, Hollywood Road

Foundation works at TWTL 398,

Tai Ho Road/Yeung Uk Road

Terminal 9 Development

KIL 11110, Hung Hom Bay

Sorrento, Kowloon Station Package II

16 Wylie Road, King’s Park

Cityplaza Renovation

Lot 8955, Sai Wan Ho

Caribbean Coast, Tung Chung Station

Staff Toilet in Airport

Hong Kong Hotel — Café Marco Renovation

Mongkok Reclamation Street hotel and

office development

Cambridge House, Quarry Bay

STTL 481 Ma On Shan, Ocean View

Renovation of Pacific Place Office Tower
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Major Contracts of Construction Materials

Structural Building

Private Sector Rebars Steel Products

Shangri-La Hotels Renovation

Residential development at

Tai Kok Tsui 201 (Phase 2)

Hong Kong Station IFC Shopping Arcade

Structural Building

Public Sector Rebars Steel Products

Castle Peak Road improvement, Tsuen Wan

between Ting Kau & Sham Tseng

Castle Peak Road improvement, Tsuen Wan

between Area 2 and Ting Kau

KCRC East Rail Extensions, Sheung Shui to

Chau Tau Tunnels

KCRC East Rail Extensions, Tai Wai

to Shek Mun & Shek Mun to Lee On

KCRC East Rail Extensions, Tai Wai Depot

Infrastructure works for Pak Shek Kok

Development

Infrastructure works for Penny’s Bay

Development
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Major Contracts of Construction Materials

Structural Building

Public Sector Rebars Steel Products

Improvements to Island Eastern Corridor Section

between North Point interchange & Sai Wan Ho

West Depot Rail (Yeung Long, Long Ping Station)

Hong Kong International Airport Passenger

Terminal

Superstructure works for Kwai Chung Phase 4

redevelopment

Foundation work for South East Kowloon

Development Site 1A — Phase 1

Foundation work for South East Kowloon

Development Site 1A, Phase 2

and Site 1B, Phase 3

Foundation work for South East Kowloon

development  Site 1B — Phase 2 and 3

Wetland Park, Phase 2 in Tin Shui Wai

Foundation work for Pok Oi Hospital

redevelopment & expansion project

Structural Building

School Rebars Steel Products

Construction of a primary school and two

secondary schools in Area 73A, Tseung Kwan O
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (As at 31st March 2003)

MR. ANDREW YAO CHO FAI

aged 37, is the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Yao graduated from the University of

California, Berkeley and Harvard Graduate School of Business. He is responsible for the VSC Group’s overall

corporate strategy and objectives. He serves on the Executive Committee of Hong Kong Housing Society and

the Federation of Hong Kong Industries. He also sits on the Shanghai People’s Political Consultative Conference,

Shanghai Youths Federation and Shanghai Fudan University. Mr. Yao is also the chairman of iSteelAsia.com

Limited which is a company listed on GEM. He is the brother of Ms. Miriam Yao Che Li.

MS. MIRIAM YAO CHE LI

aged 38, is the deputy chairman of the Company. Ms. Yao received her Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting

from the University of Southern California. She worked for a major international accounting firm and an

international investment bank prior to joining the VSC Group in 1991. Ms. Yao is also a Certified Public

Accountant in the United States (US). She is responsible for the overall sourcing and purchasing functions of

the VSC Group. Ms. Yao is also the deputy chairman of iSteelAsia.com Limited which is a company listed on

GEM. She is the sister of Mr. Andrew Yao Cho Fai.

MR. JOHNSON HO SAI HOU

aged 36, is an executive director, the chief financial officer and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Ho

obtained his Bachelor of Social Sciences degree in Accounting from The University of Hong Kong. Prior to

joining the VSC Group in 1993, Mr. Ho worked for a major international accounting firm for more than six

years. Mr. Ho is an associate member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants and a fellow member of the

Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is responsible for the accounting and internal control

functions of the VSC Group.

MR. FERNANDO DONG SAI MING

aged 41, is an executive director of the Company responsible for general administration. He has over seventeen

years’ experience in international trading. Mr. Dong is extensively involved in warehouse management, property

investment and the China operations of the VSC Group. He has also been assisting the VSC Group to establish

new manufacturing facilities in both Hong Kong and Mainland China. Mr. Dong joined the VSC Group in

1987.

Directors’ Profile
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (As at 31st March 2003)

DR. CHOW YEI CHING

aged 67, is the founder and chairman of Chevalier Group that comprises three public listed companies in Hong

Kong and one in Singapore. He is a non-executive director of Shaw Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited and Television

Broadcasts Limited. Dr. Chow is the Honorary Consul of the Kingdom of Bahrain in Hong Kong and a standing

committee member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Shanghai. Dr. Chow holds an

Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws from The University of Hong Kong and an Honorary Degree of Doctor of

Business Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He also serves in a number of positions in

various educational, charitable and trade organisations.

DR. SHAO YOU BAO

aged 82, is the chairman of Van Yu Trading Co., Ltd. and Van Fung Co., Ltd. and a director of a number of

other companies including Kincheng-Tokyo Finance Co., Ltd. and Toyoda (H.K.) Co., Ltd. Dr. Shao is also a non-

executive director of Jusco Stores (Hong Kong) Co., Limited. Dr. Shao has approximately 50 years’ experience

in banking and finance and was a committee member of the Consultative Committee on the Hong Kong New

Airport and Related Projects. He was also appointed as a member of the Preliminary Committee of the Hong

Kong Special Administrative Region. In October 1998, he was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star (SBS) Metal in

recognition of his distinguished public service in Hong Kong and of his valuable contribution to the preparatory

work for the establishment of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Dr. Shao graduated from Kobe

University, Japan with a Masters degree in Economics in 1943 and holds an Honorary Doctorate degree in Law

from Ohio University in the US.

MR. KENNETH TING WOO SHOU, JP

aged 60, is the managing director of Kader Holdings Co. Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong. Mr. Ting

graduated from the University of Illinois with a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering. He is a

non-executive director of New lsland Printing Holdings Limited and a director of a number of private companies

in Hong Kong. He is also the representative of Federation of Hong Kong Industries in the Legislative Council.

He has extensive experience in property development, industrial and investment businesses.

MR. HAROLD RICHARD KAHLER

aged 55, is a business consultant, specialised in supporting companies that are expanding their presences in

the greater China region. Mr. Kahler graduated from George Washington University with a Masters Degree in

Economics and received his Juris Doctor from Georgetown University. Mr. Kahler has extensive Asia experience.

From 1990 to mid-2002, he served Caterpillar Inc., in Asia - first as managing director of P.T. Natra Raya, a

manufacturing and assembly operation in lndonesia; then as president of Caterpillar China, where he was

responsible for establishing a new business subsidiary to manage Caterpillar’s growing interests and investments

in the region. Other assignments with Caterpillar and the US Government have provided Mr. Kahler experience

with Japan, Vietnam and other Asian economies. In 2002, Mr. Kahler served as chairman of the American

Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong.
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Turnover by Product/Operation
for the years ended 31st March

%

Gross Profit by Business Segment
for the years ended 31st March

%

Cash Dividend Payout
for the years ended 31st March

%

Basic Earnings Per Share
for the years ended 31st March

HK cents

Van Shung Chong
Holdings Limited

Financial Cockpit Chart

Turnover & Profit
Attributable to Shareholders

for the years ended 31st March

Liquidity Ratios
as at 31st March

36

Shareholders’ Equity
as at 31st March

HK$ million

Gearing Ratio/Interest Cover
as at 31st March

Turnover

Profit Attributable
to Shareholders

Current Ratio

Quick Ratio

Gearing Ratio

Interest Cover

China Advanced Materials Processing
42.96 42.68

Construction Materials Group
52.79 55.58

Other operations
4.25 1.74

HK$ million

HK$ million Profit Attributable

Turnover  to Shareholders

Enclosure systems
0.26 1.45

Plastics and machinery
6.69 5.63

Steel distribution
79.13 77.59

Building products
2.62 5.13

Other operations
0.31 0.14

0302

Coil centres
10.99 10.06

02 03
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THE FOLLOWING MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS SHOULD BE READ IN

CONJUNCTION WITH CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS AND NOTES THERETO INCLUDED ELSEWHERE

HEREIN.

(Note: The financial years ended 31st March 2002 and 2003 are referred to herein as FY2002 and FY2003, respectively.

Certain comparative figures in FY2002 have been reclassified to conform with the presentation in FY2003.)

(1) CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FY2003

Ref China Advanced Materials Processing Construction Materials Group

Unallocated
Enclosure Plastics and Steel Building Other corporate

Coil centres systems machinery Subtotal distribution products Subtotal operations expenses Grand total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 277,302 39,986 155,063 472,351 2,138,344 141,258 2,279,602 3,816 — 2,755,769

Cost of sales (378,834) (2,157,821) — — (2,536,655)

Gross profit 93,517 121,781 3,816 — 219,114

Other revenue
— Interest income 196 90 4,601 — 4,887
— Dividend income from a

 long-term investment 188 — — — 188
— Return from a joint venture — — 6,615 — 6,615

Deficit on revaluation
of investment properties — — (1,500) — (1,500)

Selling and distribution expenses (7,925) (8,919) (1) (262) (17,107)
General and administrative expenses (26,341) (47,218) (3,486) (58,103) (135,148)

1.1 Operating profit 59,635 65,734 10,045 (58,365) 77,049

1.2 Finance cost (11,144)

Profit before taxation
and minority interests 65,905

Taxation and minority interests (5,493)

Profit attributable to shareholders 60,412

1.3 Dividends per share HK 5.8 cents

1.4 Earnings per share
— Basic  HK 17.4 cents

— Diluted  HK 17.3 cents
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FY2002

Ref China Advanced Materials Processing Construction Materials Group

Unallocated
Enclosure Plastics and Steel Building Other corporate

Coil centres systems machinery Subtotal distribution products Subtotal operations expenses Grand total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 234,899 5,609 142,988 383,496 1,691,818 55,996 1,747,814 6,535 — 2,137,845

Cost of sales (317,430) (1,666,645) — — (1,984,075)

Gross profit 66,066 81,169 6,535 — 153,770

Other revenue
— Interest income 350 195 2,175 — 2,720
— Return from a joint venture — — 6,488 — 6,488

Surplus on revaluation
of investment properties — — 1,160 — 1,160

Selling and distribution expenses (6,970) (6,743) — (85) (13,798)
General and administrative expenses (21,780) (45,536) (20,014) (43,122) (130,452)

1.1 Operating profit 37,666 29,085 (3,656) (43,207) 19,888

1.2 Finance cost (7,908)
Share of loss of associates (88)

Profit before taxation
and minority interests 11,892

Taxation and minority interests (1,782)

Profit attributable to shareholders 10,110

1.3 Dividends per share HK 2.6 cents

1.4 Earnings per share
— Basic HK 2.8 cents

— Diluted HK 2.8 cents



Financial Review

39

1.1 Operating profit

a) China Advanced Materials Processing (“CAMP”)

The consolidated financial results of the CAMP operations in the VSC Group include the

following business units, 1) wholly-owned coil centres in Dongguan and Tianjin; 2)

manufacturing of enclosure systems in Shenzhen; and 3) distribution of engineering plastic

resins and injection moulding machines. For FY2003, turnover and operating profit before

unallocated corporate expenses of the CAMP operations have both increased substantially by

23% from approximately HK$383 million to HK$472 million and 58% from approximately

HK$38 million to HK$60 million, respectively. Gross margin also increased by 15% from about

17.2% to 19.8%. Major profit contribution was derived from the coil centre operations with

results from VJY and plastic/machinery divisions almost offsetting each other. Results from the

14% investment in the coil centre, Nansha Baoteel Jingchang joint venture, are not consolidated

but dividend income of approximately HK$0.2 million received during the year is recognised

as other revenue.

Coil centre operations achieved an excellent performance by reporting an 18% increase in

turnover to approximately HK$277 million and 53% increase in gross profit to approximately

HK$71 million. For the year under review, the profit was derived solely from the Dongguan

coil centre as the new Tianjin coil centre was at the preparatory stage during FY2003 and

therefore made no contribution to turnover and gross profit. Operating profit before unallocated

corporate expenses was approximately HK$57 million or a remarkable 70% increase as

compared with FY2002. With continuous improvements in operations such as reduction in

transportation costs, selling and distribution expenses decreased by 6% despite the increase

in turnover. Other positive factors for the Dongguan coil centre include the successful execution

of an increase in capacity to over 100,000 metric tones per annum, and also a healthy increase

in steel prices in FY2003. General and administrative expenses however increased by 12.7%

to approximately HK$9.5 million, mainly due to the pre-operating costs incurred by the Tianjin

coil centre, which was incorporated since July 2002.

FY2003 was the first full year of production of VJY enclosure systems manufacturing in its

new facility at Henggang of Shenzhen. Turnover reached approximately HK$40 million or a

sixfold increase from last year. In respect of the revenue source, approximately 93% of the

turnover was obtained from sales of customised enclosure systems to the three main customers,

namely Huawei, Zhongxing and Emerson whom were the VSC Group’s key target customers.

Gross profit increased by a lesser degree of 314% as it was hampered by the high cost of sales

due to the substantial costs incurred in moulds for making prototypes and provision of obsolete

and slow-moving inventories which were brought forward from the previous production facility.

General and administrative expenses also increased by 63.3% to approximately HK$10.7 million,

caused mainly by the increases in salaries, rental expenses and amortisation of goodwill as a

result of the expanded scale of operation at the new plant. As such, an operating loss before

unallocated corporate expenses of approximately HK$6 million was recorded.
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The Plastics division achieved a slight increase of turnover by 9.4% to approximately HK$149

million. New customers were developed with support from our suppliers, namely Mitsubishi,

UMG and Samsung. Sales of plastic resins from these three major suppliers contributed over

70% (FY2002: 50%) of the total turnover for FY2003. Affected by the downward trend of

the selling prices caused by the poor global economy, gross profit was slightly down by 1.1%

and operating profit before unallocated corporate expenses decreased by 5.8% to

approximately HK$7 million. For the machinery division, reduction in sales commission for

selling injection moulding machinery led to decreases in turnover and gross profit by 11.7%

and 24.6%, respectively. Although general and administrative expenses were reduced by 9.5%

mainly by control and reduction of staff cost, operating profit before unallocated corporate

expenses was still down by 40.5% to approximately HK$1.4 million.

b) Construction Materials Group (“CMG”)

The consolidated financial results of CMG in the VSC Group comprise results from the

operations of the steel distribution and the building products department. For FY2003, turnover

and operating profit before unallocated corporate expenses have also increased substantially

by 30% from approximately HK$1,748 million to HK$2,280 million and 126% from

approximately HK$29 million to HK$66 million, respectively. Gross margin also increased by

15% from about 4.6% to 5.3%. The main profit contribution was derived from the Hong

Kong steel stockholding department and Shanghai Bao Shun Chang (“BSC”) with results

from building products department and steel distribution in Mainland China almost offsetting

each other. There was no results contribution from the 7.5% investment in the Beijing PPGI

joint venture as the joint venture had not commenced operations.

As a whole, the major business unit of the CMG operations, steel distribution, has made

satisfactory improvements for FY2003. As compared to FY2002, turnover and operating profit

before unallocated corporate expenses both increased significantly by 26.4% and 87.8%,

respectively.

Under the difficult construction market environment in Hong Kong, the Hong Kong steel

stockholding department remained stable with 10.7% increase in turnover and 14.5%

increase in gross profit. Sales of rebars were maintained at prior year levels while turnover

structural steel and couplers/soil nails soared by 84.8% and 93.2%, respectively. Coupled

with the 16.4% reduction in general and administrative expenses of the department as a

result of the reduction in godown rental cost, a 33.9% increase of operating profit before

unallocated corporate expenses to approximately HK$50 million was achieved.
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Steel distribution in Mainland China enjoyed a more rapid growth. The 66.7% (the remaining

stake is owned by Baosteel) owned subsidiary, BSC which focuses on distribution of Baosteel’s

products, finished FY2003 with a 20.1% increase in turnover. Operating profit before

unallocated corporate expenses and net profit contribution before minority interests reached

a record high of approximately HK$15 million and HK$10 million, respectively. Sales to the

iSteelAsia Group also increased by 24.2%, in line with the business expansion of the iSteelAsia

Group in Mainland China. Turnover of steel distribution in Mainland China amounted to

approximately HK$217 million and operating profit before unallocated corporate expenses of

approximately HK$1.5 million was recorded.

The building products department is making good progress. Turnover and gross profit in

FY2003 increased by 152% and 110%, respectively and operating loss before unallocated

corporate expenses reduced by 70% to approximately HK$2 million. The increase in turnover

was mainly contributed by the kitchen cabinet division, which represents over 70% of the

department’s turnover. Three major projects of kitchen cabinet division, namely Sorrento,

Kowloon Station Package II, Phase 1, Coastal Skyline, Tung Chung Station and Bellagio, Sham

Tseng, were substantially completed by 99%, 88% and 93%, respectively as at 31st March

2003. General and administrative expenses increased by 33.5% due to increase in bad and

doubtful debts, insurance cost and staff costs.

Although turnover of the sanitary ware division declined by 19%, it was compensated by the

246% increase in turnover of tiles division. Altogether, project sales of sanitary ware and tiles

were up by 23% but were still insufficient to absorb the operating costs for a profitable

situation.

In April 2002, the first retail outlet with showroom, Leisure Plus, was opened. Sales gradually

increased during the year with turnover amounting to approximately HK$4 million for FY2003.

However, such revenue was not sufficient to absorb the full year fixed overheads in its first

year of operation. On the other hand, retail sales and short-term kitchen cabinets installation

for individual projects allowed the department to benefit from shorter days of receivable and

lower holding inventory costs.

c) Other operations

Other operations comprise rental of investment properties, finance business and other

investments. Turnover dropped 42% to approximately HK$4 million because less rental income

was received during FY2003. Other revenue comprised guarantee return received from the

GFTZ fuel company of approximately HK$6.6 million and interest income from the iSteelAsia

Group of approximately HK$4.6 million. Operating profit before unallocated corporate expenses

amounted to approximately HK$10 million as compared to an operating loss of approximately

HK$4 million in FY2002.
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d) Unallocated corporate expenses

Unallocated corporate expenses increased by 35% to approximately HK$58 million. Factors

attributable to the increase included the one-time provision costs of moving our Hong Kong

headquarters of which approximately HK$2 million was for reinstatement costs and

approximately HK$3.3 million was for accelerated depreciation of immovable assets of the

previous office. Implementation of the Oracle ERP system and other supply chain management

softwares resulted in a further HK$3 million increase in depreciation. Net rental expenses and

staff costs also increased by approximately HK$3.3 million and HK$2.8 million, respectively.

1.2 Finance cost

In line with the increase in turnover, finance cost increased by 41% to approximately HK$11.1

million. As the VSC Group expands its business scale, in particular the growth from its steel processing

and distribution businesses, it is expected that the finance cost from both bank trade lines and

term loans will also be increased. Interest cover (operating profit divided by finance cost) improved

to about 6.91 (FY2002: 2.51) as a consequence of the improvement in operating profit.

1.3 Dividends per share

Total cash dividends increased from HK2.6 cents to HK5.8 cents. Dividend payout (total dividends

divided by profit attributable to shareholders X 100%) was around 30%. Together with the special

share buyback at HK$0.98 per share made during FY2003, the VSC Group continues its policy to

provide satisfactory return to its shareholders.

1.4 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share improved by about 521% to HK17.4 cents. Diluted earnings per share

improved by about 518% to HK17.3 cents. Such improvements were due to the increase in profit

attributable to shareholders and reduction of issued share capital as a result of share repurchase

made during FY2003.
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(2) CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As at 31st March

Ref 2003 2002 % Change
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

2.1 Property, plant and equipment 125,789 123,248 +2.1
Investment properties 31,000 32,500 -4.6
Investment in associates 2 2 —

2.2 Long-term investments 45,711 32,561 +40.4
Goodwill 4,624 6,474 -28.6

Current assets: 1,211,578 791,401 +53.1
2.3 — inventories 381,477 217,775 +75.2
2.4 — gross amount due from

 customers for installation
 contract work 19,034 1,891 +906.6

2.5 — prepayments, deposits and
 other receivables 79,520 41,444 +91.9

2.6 — accounts receivable 655,025 470,894 +39.1
— loans receivable 6,891 10,843 -36.4

2.7 — pledged bank deposits 7,957 3,021 +163.4
— cash and other bank deposits 61,674 45,533 +35.4

Current liabilities: (871,073) (458,053) +90.2
— short-term borrowings (590,667) (262,982) +124.6
— accounts and bills payable (212,020) (152,571) +39.0

2.8 Subtotal (802,687) (415,553) +93.2
2.5 — receipts in advance (29,782) (6,075) +390.2

— accrued liabilities
 and other payables (27,938) (33,980) -17.8

2.4 — gross amount due to
 customers for installation
 contract work (4,590) — N/A

— taxation payable (6,076) (2,445) +148.5

2.8 Long-term bank loan,
non-current portion (20,475) — N/A

Deferred taxation (250) (250) —
Minority interests (6,502) (4,573) +42.2

Net assets 520,404 523,310 -0.6

2.9 Capital and reserves:

Share capital 31,226 35,498 -12.0
Reserves 356,222 359,311 -0.9
Retained profit 114,845 125,661 -8.6
Proposed dividends 18,111 2,840 +537.7

Shareholders’ equity 520,404 523,310 -0.6
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As a whole, the VSC Group significantly increased its scale of operation, as reflected by the

increase of both assets and liabilities. Current assets and current liabilities increased by 53% and

90%, respectively, as a result of the expanded scale of steel processing and distribution businesses.

Specifically, the current asset increase were mainly attributed to increase in  the inventories and

accounts receivable whilst increases in the current liabilities were mainly attributable to increase

in corresponding bank and other borrowings, accounts payable and bills payable.

2.1 Property, plant and equipment

Net book value of property, plant and equipment was slightly increased by approximately HK$2.5

million. Total fixed assets additions during FY2003 amounted to approximately HK$23.4 million

which included mainly capital investment in Dongguan and Tianjin coil centres, and setting up of

Leisure Plus. The increase was offset by annual depreciation charge of approximately HK$20.1

million and disposal of fixed assets with net book value of approximately HK$0.7 million.

2.2 Long-term investments

The investment in iMerchants Limited brought forward from last year has been disposed of in

exchange for an increase in investment in iSteelAsia.com Limited (“iSteelAsia”). As a result, the

VSC Group’s equity interest in iSteelAsia increased from about 17.8% to 19.2%. Due to the

continuous weak performance of the e-Business related securities, the investments in iSteelAsia

were restated from approximately HK$27 million to around HK$15 million with reference to the

market share price at year end. The decrease of about HK$12 million was transferred to the asset

revaluation reserve. In FY2003, the VSC Group invested approximately HK$24 million, represents a

7.5% equity stake in a new Beijing joint venture company of the Beijing Shougang Group for the

manufacturing of colour-coated steel sheets. The remaining balance of long-term unlisted

investments of approximately HK$6 million represents mainly the investment costs in the Baosteel

Jingchang joint venture.

2.3 Inventories

In the latter half of FY2003, global steel price rose substantially by over 50% for certain types of

steel as the steel market was affected by the uncertainties created by the Iraqi war as well as global

demand and supply. Coupled with the increase in the demand from its steel distribution, the VSC

Group cautiously raised its stock position (with only 31% increase in terms of tonnage in steel) and

as such, overall inventories in dollar terms increased by about 75% to approximately HK$381

million. Overall inventory turnover (average inventories divided by cost of sales x 365 days) remained

at around 43 days (FY2002: 42 days).

2.4 Gross amount due from/to customers for installation contract work

This amount represented the outstanding contract sum due from/to customers for kitchen cabinets

installation contract work completed less any progress billings received and receivable as at year end

and any foreseeable losses. The major contract in progress at year end was Sorrento, Kowloon Station

Package II, Phase 2. As the VSC Group completed several of its large kitchen cabinets projects according

to project progress, the gross amount due from/to customers for kitchen cabinets installation contract

work at year end increased to about HK$19 million and HK$5 million, respectively.
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2.5 Prepayments, deposits and other receivables/Receipts in advance

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables increased by 92% due mainly to an increase in deposits

placed with the steel suppliers of BSC in accordance with the prevailing market practice of China

steel industry. Such deposits increased from approximately HK$11 million to approximately HK$37

million with the growth of BSC’s business. BSC, in turn, required deposits from its customers and

such back-to-back deposits received also increased from approximately HK$5 million to approximately

HK$27 million which mainly contributed to the 390% increase in receipts in advance. Value-added

tax receivables in relation to BSC’s increased stock level also increased by approximately HK$5

million.

2.6 Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable (“AR”), net of provision for doubtful debts, increased by about 39%. The

increase in AR mainly arose from our steel distribution business in Mainland China. AR from these

customers totalled approximately HK$105 million of which over 90% were aged less than 60 days.

AR from the iSteelAsia Group also increased by approximately HK$72 million due to the expansion

of its steel trading business. Overall accounts receivable turnover (average AR divided by turnover

x 365 days) increased to around 75 days (FY2002: 71 days).

During the normal course of its businesses, the VSC Group offered credit terms ranging from 30 to

90 days. An ageing analysis of AR based on delivery date was as follows:

As at As at

31st March 2003 31st March 2002

HK$ million HK$ million

0 to 60 days 416.8 358.5

61 to 120 days 151.0 93.8

121 to 180 days 42.3 17.3

181 to 365 days 43.2 3.6

Over 365 days 16.3 19.0

669.6 492.2

Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts (14.6) (21.3)

655.0 470.9
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2.7 Pledged bank deposits

Pledged bank deposits as at 31st March 2003 of approximately HK$8 million represented security

under the requirements of newly obtained Renminbi (“RMB”) bank facilities whereas the balance as at

31st March 2002 represented deposits required by the China customs office. Since the Dongguan coil

centre has attained Class A Enterprise status, all such deposits have been released in FY2003.

2.8 Borrowings and liabilities

Sum of the short-term bank borrowings, accounts and bills payable increased by about 93%. The

increase as stated before was mainly due to the increased steel price and purchase of steel from

our expanded steel processing and distribution as well as capital investment in various new business

set ups such as enclosure systems manufacturing, Tianjin coil centre, and Beijing Shougang PPGI

factory (a 3-year bank term loan in the amount of HK$23.4 million was obtained to finance the

PPGI investment, of which approximately HK$20 million was stated as long-term bank loan, non-

current portion). Gearing ratio for interest bearing loans (short-term borrowings and long-term

bank loan divided by shareholders’ equity) was also increased to about 1.17 (2002: 0.50).

GROWTH OF TURNOVER VS ASSETS/LIABILITIES
As at and for the years ended 31st March

HK$ million

2002 2003

2.9 Capital and reserves

Major changes and movements in our capital and reserves are highlighted as follows:

Decrease in nominal value of share capital of about HK$4 million was mainly attributable to

approximately HK$5 million decrease due to repurchase of shares, and approximately HK$1 million

increase due to the issue of shares upon exercise of employee share options. Increase in reserves

(including retained profit and proposed dividends) of about HK$1 million was mainly attributable

to (i) approximately HK$48 million decrease to share premium due to repurchase of shares; (ii)

approximately HK$12 million decrease to asset revaluation reserve from deficit on revaluation of

long-term investments; (iii) approximately HK$60 million increase to retained profit for profit of

FY2003; and (iv) approximately HK$3 million each for premium arising from issue of shares and for

dividends paid almost offsetting each other.

CMG AR

CMG inventories

CAMP AR

CAMP inventories

Turnover

Short-term borrowings +
long-term bank loan +
accounts and bills payable –
cash and all bank deposits
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(3) OTHER FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
3.1 Liquidity and financing

As shown in the consolidated cash flow statement, the VSC Group’s cash and cash equivalents

have been improved. A net cash inflow of approximately HK$29 million from operating activities

was recorded in FY2003 as compared to a net cash inflow of approximately HK$119 million for

FY2002. Such decrease was mainly due to the increase in accounts receivable and inventories

offsetting by the increase in trust receipts bank loans and accounts and bills payable. Together with

the net cash outflow of approximately HK$42 million from investing activities and the net cash

inflow of approximately HK$34 million from financing activities, cash and cash equivalents thus

increased by approximately HK$21 million. Liquidity ratios such as the current ratio (currents assets

divided by current liabilities) and the quick ratio (current assets excluding inventories divided by

current liabilities) were reduced but still kept at healthy levels as follows:

% Change between

2003 2002 2001 2003 and 2002 2003 and 2001

Current ratio 1.39 1.73 2.76 -20% -50%

Quick ratio 0.95 1.25 1.84 -24% -48%

The VSC Group’s business operations were generally financed by cash generated from its business

activities and banking facilities provided by its banks. During FY2003, the VSC Group obtained

short-term loans of about RMB25 million from banks in China to finance the working capital of its

China operations. A long-term bank loan of HK$23.4 million was also obtained to finance the

investment in Beijing Shougang PPGI factory. The VSC Group is also negotiating with banks in

Hong Kong and China for additional financing to support its business development. As at May

2003, letter of credit and trust receipts loans facilities available were around HK$1.4 billion (2002:

HK$1.3 billion) and around HK$1.1 billion (2002: HK$0.7 billion), respectively. The VSC Group also

had an outstanding warrant exercisable on or before 18th November 2004, which if fully subscribed

could bring in proceeds in the amount of about HK$42 million. With its strong financial background

and keen support from the banks and the investors, the VSC Group is confident of obtaining the

necessary funding at very competitive pricing for future business expansion.
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3.2 Foreign exchange and interest exposure

The foreign currencies involved in the VSC Group’s business transactions were primarily US dollar,

RMB and Euro.

A majority of the VSC Group’s inventory purchases (steel stockholding, buildings products, coil

centre and plastics) were made in US dollar whereas majority of sales were denominated in Hong

Kong dollar. Theoretically, the VSC Group was subject to foreign exchange exposure in Hong Kong

dollar against US dollar for trust receipts loan borrowings plus any uncovered inventory position to

fulfill sales contracts. However, with the strong support from the government to maintain the peg

system in Hong Kong, the exchange rate for the US dollar should be relatively stable and the VSC

Group’s potential exposure in US dollar should thus be minimal in the foreseeable future. The VSC

Group will continue to monitor closely the exchange risks by requesting US dollar settlement from

customers and hedging by forward contracts and applicable derivatives where necessary.

Foreign exchange exposure relating to major businesses and investments in Mainland China were

assessed as follows:

Foreign

Exchange Sales Local

Exposure Income Purchases Expenses

HK$ million

a) Dongguan coil centre 23 HK$/RMB US$ RMB

b) Enclosure systems manufacturing 15 RMB RMB RMB

c) Tianjin coil centre 12 RMB US$/RMB RMB

d) Baosteel Jingchang 6 RMB RMB RMB

e) Dongguan investment properties 5 N/A N/A N/A

f) Shanghai Bao Shun Chang 3 RMB RMB RMB

Total: 64

The VSC Group’s various investments and assets in Mainland China totalling approximately HK$64

million were subject to foreign exchange exposure for any RMB devaluation upon realisation of

these assets or repatriation of profit from these joint ventures. Dongguan coil centre’s sales revenues

were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar with the local operating costs predominantly financed

by remittance from Hong Kong head office with limited RMB receipts. As for Tianjin coil centre and

steel distribution in China, all sales revenues would be denominated in RMB while purchases would

be in US dollar and RMB. The local expenses in RMB should be sufficiently covered by the RMB

receipts for the operation. Costs of these operations would be increased if there was an appreciation
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in the RMB. We do not expect any foreign exchange exposure for operations of enclosure systems

manufacturing, Shanghai Bao Shun Chang and Baosteel Jingchang since all their income/expenses

are denominated in RMB. Investment in the Beijing PPGI factory is in HK dollar and properly hedged.

As stated before, the VSC Group obtained RMB25 million bank loans in FY2003 to finance its

operation in Mainland China and will secure more RMB bank loans and facilities in the future. The

VSC Group will also continue to match RMB expenditures with RMB receipts to minimise exchange

exposure.

The building products department purchased from several European suppliers in Euro and from

Toto and Laufen in US dollar. While the amount involved was not very material, movements of the

Euro were closely monitored and hedging by forward contracts were used to avoid erosion of the

profit margin.

Interest costs of all import bank loans and the long-term bank loan were levied on US/HK dollar

LIBOR/SIBOR/HIBOR basis with very competitive margin. As for the RMB bank loans, interest costs

were based on loan rates set by the People’s Bank of China plus competitive margin. Under the

current low interest rate environment, the VSC Group benefited from such relatively lower and

stable interest rate in expanding its businesses in Hong Kong and China.

3.3 Contingent liabilities and charges on assets

As at 31st March 2003, the VSC Group had consolidated contingent liabilities of approximately

HK$19 million which included (i) bank guarantee in lieu of rental deposit of our Hong Kong

headquarters amounting to approximately HK$3 million; (ii) performance bonds for our kitchen

cabinet installation projects amounting to approximately HK$14 million; and (iii) corporate guarantee

for a RMB bank loan granted to Baosteel Jingchang joint venture amounting to approximately

HK$2 million. VSC also gives corporate guarantee to banks in respect of banking facilities to its

subsidiaries in the amount of approximately HK$1.5 billion, including a corporate guarantee of

about HK$19 million to bank for RMB working capital loan to its 66.7% owned subsidiary, BSC.

As at 31st March 2003, the VSC Group had certain charges on assets which included (i) bank

deposit of approximately HK$8 million pledged for a RMB bank facility; (ii) inventories of

approximately HK$15 million pledged for a RMB bank loan; and (iii) inventories held under short-

term trust receipts bank loan arrangements in Hong Kong.
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13th Proof FILE: E_0305044Report / DATE: 20-06-2003 / JOB NO: 0305044(Chi)-08(F) /  SIZE: 210mm(W) X 285mm(H)

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together with the audited accounts of Van

Shung Chong Holdings Limited (“VSC” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “VSC

Group”) for the year ended 31st March 2003.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
VSC is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) China Advanced

Materials Processing including manufacturing of industrial products such as rolled steel flat products

and enclosure systems and trading of industrial products such as engineering plastic resins and injection

moulding machines, and (ii) Construction Materials Group including trading and stockholding of

construction materials such as steel products, sanitary ware and kitchen cabinets and the installation

work of kitchen cabinets.

Details of the VSC Group’s turnover and segment result by business segment and geographical segment

are set out in Note 34 to the accompanying accounts.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31st March 2003, the five largest customers of the VSC Group accounted for less

than 30% of the VSC Group’s total turnover, while the five largest suppliers of the VSC Group accounted

for approximately 34% of the VSC Group’s total purchases. In addition, the largest supplier of the VSC

Group accounted for approximately 12% of the VSC Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of VSC’s Directors

owned more than 5% of VSC’s share capital) had a beneficial interest in the five largest suppliers of the

VSC Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
Details of the VSC Group’s results for the year ended 31st March 2003 are set out in the consolidated

profit and loss account on page 65 of this annual report.

VSC has not declared any interim dividend during the year and the Directors recommend the payment

of a final cash dividend of HK$0.058 per share. Total cash dividend paid and payable for the year ended

31st March 2003 will amount to HK$0.058 per share or approximately HK$18,111,000 (2002:

HK$9,230,000).

SHARE CAPITAL, WARRANTS AND EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS
Details of share capital, warrants and employee share options of VSC are set out in Notes 29, 30 and 31,

respectively, to the accompanying accounts.

Report of the Directors
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RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFIT
Movements in reserves and retained profit of the VSC Group and VSC during the year are set out in Note

32 to the accompanying accounts.

As at 31st March 2003, approximately HK$53,986,000 (2002: HK$53,986,000) of VSC’s reserves and

approximately HK$7,786,000 (2002: HK$7,102,000) of VSC’s retained profit were available for distribution

to its shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES AND WARRANTS
During the year, VSC repurchased certain of its own shares by way of a voluntary cash offer, details of

which are set out in Note 29 to the accompanying accounts.

The repurchases set out in Note 29 were made for the enhancement of the net asset value per share and

earnings per share of VSC.

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of VSC are set out in Note 29 to the

accompanying accounts.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under VSC’s Bye-laws and the laws of Bermuda.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Details of movements of property, plant and equipment and investment properties during the year are

set out in Notes 14 and 15, respectively, to the accompanying accounts.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
Particulars of VSC’s subsidiaries and associates are set out in Notes 16 and 17, respectively, to the

accompanying accounts.

BANK LOANS
Particulars of bank loans as at 31st March 2003 are set out in Notes 25 and 27 to the accompanying

accounts.

PENSION SCHEMES
Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 36 to the accompanying accounts.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year, the VSC Group made charitable donations of approximately HK$520,000 (2002:

HK$69,000).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
A sub-tenancy agreement dated 5th July 2000 (the “Sub-Tenancy Agreement”) was entered into between

CFY Enterprises Limited (“CFY”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and EC Investment Services

Limited (formerly known as EC.com Limited) (“EC”), a company indirectly controlled by Mr. Tsang Kwok

Tai, Moses, who was a former non-executive director of the Company and resigned on 17th August

2002 (the “Transaction”), in which CFY agreed to sub-lease to EC an office premise being a portion of

52nd Floor, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the waiver (the “Waiver”) dated 14th July 2000 granted by The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Transaction has been reviewed by the independent non-

executive directors of the Company. The independent non-executive directors of the Company have

confirmed that (i) the Transaction has been conducted on normal commercial terms; (ii) the terms are

fair and reasonable and in the best interests of the Company; (iii) the rental payable by EC under the

Sub-Tenancy Agreement was agreed after arm’s length negotiation in light of the then current market

conditions with reference to the advice obtained from an independent valuer; and (iv) the aggregate

amount of the Transaction for the financial year ended 31st March 2003 of the Company did not exceed

the higher of HK$10 million or 3 per cent. of the book value of the net tangible assets of the VSC Group

in this financial year.

The auditors of the Company have also confirmed that (i) the Transaction had received the approval of

the Company’s board of directors including independent non-executive directors; and (ii) the Transaction

was entered into in accordance with terms of the Sub-Tenancy Agreement governing the Transaction.

Moreover, on 14th May 2002, the Company entered into a contract to purchase through its wholly-

owned subsidiary, Van Shung Chong (B.V.I.) Limited (“VSC (BVI)”), 22,976,000 ordinary shares (“iSteelAsia

Shares”) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of iSteelAsia.com Limited (“iSteelAsia”), representing

approximately 1.47% of the then total issued share capital of iSteelAsia, from a subsidiary of iMerchants

Group Limited (“iMerchants Group”), Grand Bridge Enterprises Limited (“Grand Bridge”), for a total

consideration of HK$2,297,600. The consideration was settled by way of a transfer of 11,488,000

ordinary shares (“iMerchants Shares”) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of iMerchants Limited

(“iMerchants”), representing approximately 0.99% of the then total issued share capital of iMerchants,

from VSC (BVI) to iMerchants Group, being the controlling shareholder of iMerchants.

The acquisition of the iSteelAsia Shares (the “Acquisition”) was for a total consideration of HK$2,297,600.

The consideration was settled between VSC (BVI) and Grand Bridge by way of a transfer of the iMerchants

Shares from VSC (BVI) to iMerchants Group, being the controlling shareholder of iMerchants.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

The consideration was determined after arm’s length negotiations and agreed between VSC (BVI) and

Grand Bridge to be HK$0.10 for each share in iSteelAsia and HK$0.20 for each share in iMerchants.

Such consideration was with reference to the then share performance of iSteelAsia and iMerchants.

Huge Top Industrial Ltd. (“Huge Top”) held approximately 57.64% of the then total issued share capital

of the Company and was a controlling shareholder and hence, a connected person, of the Company.

Huge Top also held approximately 10.21% of the then total issued share capital of iSteelAsia and was a

substantial shareholder of iSteelAsia.

As the Acquisition involved an acquisition by the Company of interests in iSteelAsia, a substantial

shareholder of which (i.e., Huge Top) was the controlling shareholder of the Company. Therefore, the

Acquisition constituted a connected transaction for the Company pursuant to the Rules Governing the

Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Directors believed that a more consolidated and focused deployment of resources to areas of its

core competence was beneficial to the Company. The Directors also believed that the Acquisition would

enhance and consolidate the Company’s ownership in iSteelAsia and the Company decided to dispose

of its shareholdings in iMerchants to consolidate its investments. The Directors, including the independent

non-executive Directors, considered that the Acquisition to be fair and reasonable so far as the Company

and its shareholders are concerned, and that the Acquisition is in the commercial interests of the Company.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Yao Shu Sheng, Honorary Chairman (Resigned on 17th August 2002)

Mr. Yao Cho Fai, Andrew, Chairman and CEO

Ms. Yao Che Li, Miriam, Deputy Chairman

Mr. Dong Yuen Jih (Resigned on 17th August 2002)

Mr. Ho Sai Hou, Johnson

Mr. Dong Sai Ming, Fernando (Appointed on 17th August 2002)

Mr. Shih Tar Ping, Edward (Appointed on 17th August 2002 and

resigned on 10th February 2003)
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Cont’d)
Non-executive directors

Dr. Chow Yei Ching

Dr. Shao You Bao

Mr. Ting Woo Shou, Kenneth

Mr. Harold Richard Kahler (Appointed on 24th September 2002)

Mr. Tsang Kwok Tai, Moses (Resigned on 17th August 2002)

In accordance with VSC’s Bye-laws 86(2) and 87(1), Mr. Dong Sai Ming, Fernando, Mr. Harold Richard

Kahler and Mr. Ho Sai Hou, Johnson will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the directors has a service contract with the VSC Group which is not determinable by the VSC

Group within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND WARRANTS
As at 31st March 2003, the interests of directors and their respective associates in the shares of HK$0.10

each in the capital of VSC (“Shares”) as recorded in the register maintained by VSC under Section 29 of

the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (the “SDI Ordinance”) or which are required, pursuant

to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, to be notified to VSC

and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Number of Number of

Name Shares Warrants

(Note a)

Mr. Yao Cho Fai, Andrew (Note b) 204,624,000 —

Ms. Yao Che Li, Miriam (Note b) 204,624,000 —

Mr. Dong Sai Ming, Fernando (Note c) 791,811 124,200

Mr. Ho Sai Hou, Johnson (Note d) 307,894 46,640

Dr. Shao You Bao (Notes e and f) 254,110 120,000

Mr. Ting Woo Shou, Kenneth (Note g) 2,402,000 240,200
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND WARRANTS (Cont’d)
Notes:

a. The warrants (“Warrants”) of VSC conferred rights to subscribe in cash for Shares, on the basis of a subscription

price of HK$1.18 per Share (subject to adjustment) during the period from 19th November 2001 to 18th

November 2004 (both dates inclusive).

b. As at 31st March 2003, Huge Top held 204,624,000 Shares of VSC. The board of directors of Huge Top only

comprises Mr. Yao Cho Fai, Andrew and Ms. Yao Che Li, Miriam, who are also VSC’s Directors. Mr. Yao Cho

Fai, Andrew directly and indirectly through Perfect Capital International Corp. owned more than one-third of

the issued shares of Huge Top and is entitled to exercise more than one-third of the voting power at general

meetings of Huge Top. The interests of the aforesaid Directors in the issued Shares of VSC were corporate

interests in VSC as described in Practice Note 5 of the Listing Rules.

c. Mr. Dong Sai Ming, Fernando held 791,811 Shares and 124,200 Warrants of VSC. These interests were

personal interests in VSC as described in Practice Note 5 of the Listing Rules.

d. Mr. Ho Sai Hou, Johnson held 307,894 Shares and 46,640 Warrants of VSC. These interests were personal

interests in VSC as described in Practice Note 5 of the Listing Rules.

e. Dr. Shao You Bao held 254,110 Shares and 60,000 Warrants of VSC. These interests were personal interests

in VSC as described in Practice Note 5 of the Listing Rules.

f. Ms. Hsu Chi Kung, wife of Dr. Shao You Bao, held 60,000 Warrants of VSC. The interests of Dr. Shao You Bao

in these Warrants were family interests in VSC as described in Practice Note 5 of the Listing Rules.

g. Mr. Ting Woo Shou, Kenneth held 2,402,000 Shares and 240,200 Warrants of VSC. These interests were

personal interests in VSC as described in Practice Note 5 of the Listing Rules.

The interests of the directors in the share options of VSC are separately disclosed in the section

“Information on Share Option Scheme” below.

Other than disclosed herein, as at 31st March 2003, neither the Directors nor their associates had any

interests in any Shares of VSC (within the meaning of the SDI Ordinance) which were required to be

notified to VSC pursuant to Section 28 of the SDI Ordinance or which were required to be recorded

under Section 29 of the SDI Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Apart from as disclosed under the section “Directors’ Interests in Shares and Warrants” above and the

section “Information on Share Option Scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire

benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of VSC granted to any director or their

respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was

VSC, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement

to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN CONTRACTS
Save as disclosed in Note 3 to the accompanying accounts, no contracts of significance in relation to the

VSC Group’s business to which VSC or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any of VSC’s

Directors of members of its management had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER
As at 31st March 2003, according to the register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section

16(1) of the SDI Ordinance, VSC had been notified of the following interest (other than those interests

of Directors disclosed above), being 10% or more of the issued share capital of VSC:

Number of Shareholding Number of

Name issued Shares percentage Warrants

Huge Top Industrial Ltd. 204,624,000 65.53% —

Save as disclosed above, VSC had no notice of any interests required to be recorded under Section 16(1)

of the SDI Ordinance as at 31st March 2003.
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1. Purpose of the Old and New

Share Option Schemes

2. Participants of the Old and

New Share Option Schemes

Old Share Option Scheme

As an incentive to employees.

Directors and/or executives and/

or employees of the Company or

its subsidiaries.

New Share Option Scheme

To provide incentives to participants

to contribute to the VSC Group

and/or to enable the VSC Group

to recruit and/or to retain high-

calibre employees and attract

human resources  that  a re

valuable to the VSC Group.

Employee/agent/consultant or

representative, including any

execut ive or non-execut ive

director, of any member of the

VSC Group or any other person

who satisfies the selection criteria

as set out in the New Share

Option Scheme.

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME
A new share option scheme has been adopted by VSC since 12th November 2001 (the “New Share

Option Scheme”) to replace a share option scheme which had been adopted on 22nd January 1994 (the

“Old Share Option Scheme”) to comply with the current statutory requirements. VSC may grant options

to the participants as set out in the New Share Option Scheme. Summary of the Old Share Option

Scheme and the New Share Option Scheme was as follows:



Report of the Directors

58

3. Total number of Shares

available for issue under the

Old and New Share Option

Schemes and percentage of

issued share capital as at

the date of the annual

report

Old Share Option Scheme

14,400,000 Shares (approximately

4.6% of issued share capital),

being the outstanding options

unexercised as at the date of the

annual report.

The maximum number of Shares

in respect of which options may

be granted ( together  with

options exercised and options

then outstanding) under the Old

Share Option Scheme and any

other scheme involving the issue

or grant of options over Shares

or  other  secur i t i e s  o f  the

Company may not exceed such

number of  Shares  as  sha l l

represent 10% of the issued

shares capital of the Company

from time to time, excluding for

this purpose Shares issued upon

the exercise of options granted

pursuant to the Old Share Option

Scheme.

New Share Option Scheme

The Company may initially grant

options representing 35,497,818

Shares under the New Share

Option Scheme (i.e. approximately

10% of the issued share capital of

the Company as at the date of the

approval of the New Share Option

Scheme and approximately 11.4%

of the issued share capital of the

Company as at the date of the

annual report).

The maximum number of Shares

which may be issued upon

exerc ise of a l l  outstanding

options granted and yet to be

exercised under the New Share

Option Scheme and any other

schemes of the Company and/or

its subsidiary (including the Old

Share Option Scheme) must not

exceed 30% of the Shares in

issue from time to time. No

options may be granted under

any schemes of the Company or

its subsidiary if this would result

in the 30% limit being exceeded.

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)
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4. Maximum entitlement of

each participant under the

Old and New Share Option

Schemes

5. The period within which the

Shares must be taken up

under an option

6. The minimum period for

which an option must be

he ld  before  i t  can  be

exercised

7. The amount payable on

application or acceptance of

the option and the period

within which payments or

calls must or may be made

or loans for such purposes

must be paid

Old Share Option Scheme

25% of the aggregate number

of Shares for the time being

issued and issuable under the Old

Share Option Scheme.

At any time during a period to

be determined and notified by

the Directors, which period may

commence on the date of grant

of an option but shall end in any

event not later then ten years

from the date of adoption of the

Old Share Option Scheme.

No  such  m in imum pe r iod

specified under the Old Share

Option Scheme but the Directors

can grant options at terms and

conditions as they may think fit

to offer.

H K $ 1 0  i s  t o  b e  p a i d  a s

consideration for the grant of

option and the option shall be

accepted within 28 days from the

date of grant or such longer or

shorter periods as the Directors

may determine.

New Share Option Scheme

The total number of Shares

issued and to be issued upon

exercise of the options granted

to each participant (including

e x e rc i s e d ,  c a n c e l l e d  a n d

outstanding options) within any

twelve-month period under the

New Share Option Scheme and

any other share option scheme(s)

of the Company and/or any

subsidiary must not exceed 1%

of the number of Shares in issue.

Must not be more than ten years

from the date of offer of grant

of the option.

No such minimum period specified

and an option may be exercised in

accordance with the terms of the

New Share Option Scheme at any

time during a period to be notified

by the Board of Directors to each

grantee.

The acceptance of an option, if

accepted, must be made within

28 days from the date on which

the offer is made with a non-

refundable payment of HK$10

f ro m  t h e  g r a n t e e  t o  t h e

Company.

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)
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8. The basis of determining

the exercise price

9. The remaining life of the

Old and New Share Option

Schemes

Old Share Option Scheme

The exercise price is determined

by the Directors and being not

less than the higher of:

a. 80% of the average closing

price of the Shares quoted

on the Stock Exchange on

the  f i ve  t r ad ing  day s

immediately preceding the

date of grant of an option,

and

b. the nominal value of the

Shares.

The Old Share Option Scheme

was adopted on 22nd January

1994 and was originally effective

until 22nd January 2004. On

12th November 2001, the Old

Share  Opt ion Scheme was

resolved by the shareholders of

the Company to have been

terminated thereon.

New Share Option Scheme

The exercise price of an option

will be at least the highest of:

a. the closing price of the

Shares as stated in the

Stock Exchange’s dai ly

quotations sheet on the

date of offer of the grant

of the option, which must

be a business day,

b. the average closing price of

the Shares as stated in the

Stock Exchange’s dai ly

quotations sheets for the

f i v e  b u s i n e s s  d a y s

immediately preceding the

date of offer of the grant

of the option, and

c. the nominal value of the

Shares.

The New Share Option Scheme

shall be valid and effective for a

period of ten years commencing

on the adoption date i.e. 12th

November 2001.

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)
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INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)
The Old Share Option Scheme was terminated on 12th November 2001. Upon termination of the Old

Share Option Scheme, no further options will be granted thereunder but in all other respects, the provisions

of the Old Share Option Scheme shall remain in force and all options granted prior to such termination

shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance therewith. The employee share options outstanding

under the Old Share Option Scheme and the New Share Option Scheme during the period were as

follows:

Old Share Option Scheme
Number of share options

Lapsed

Exercise Beginning during End

Name or category Date of Vesting Exercise price of year the year of year

of participant grant period period per Share ’000 ’000 ’000

Directors:—

Mr. Yao Cho Fai, 17th December 1994 17th December 1994 to 15th January 1997 to HK$1.1344 2,000 — 2,000

Andrew 14th January 1997 15th January 2004

18th January 1996 18th January 1996 to 15th January 1997 to HK$1.2528 2,000 — 2,000

14th January 1997 15th January 2004

18th March 1996 18th March 1996 to 1st May 1998 to HK$1.3840 2,900 — 2,900

30th April 1998 22nd January 2004

Ms. Yao Che Li, 17th December 1994 17th December 1994 to 15th January 1997 to HK$1.1344 2,000 — 2,000

Miriam 14th January 1997 15th January 2004

Mr. Ho Sai Hou, 17th December 1994 17th December 1994 to 15th January 1997 to HK$1.1344 500 — 500

Johnson 14th January 1997 15th January 2004

18th March 1996 18th March 1996 to 1st May 1998 to HK$1.3840 400 — 400

30th April 1998 22nd January 2004

Sub-total 9,800 — 9,800

Employees:—

In aggregate 3rd March 1994 3rd March 1994 to 1st April 1996 to HK$0.9360 6,000 (6,000 ) —

31st March 1996 31st March 2003

In aggregate 17th December 1994 17th December 1994 to 15th January 1997 to HK$1.1344 2,000 — 2,000

14th January 1997 15th January 2004

In aggregate 18th January 1996 18th January 1996 to 15th January 1997 to HK$1.2528 2,000 — 2,000

14th January 1997 15th January 2004

In aggregate 10th January 2000 10th January 2000 to 1st February 2002 to HK$1.6880 1,100 (200 ) 900

31st January 2002 22nd January 2004

Sub-total 11,100 (6,200 ) 4,900

Total of Old Share

Option Scheme 20,900 (6,200 ) 14,700
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INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)
New Share Option Scheme

Number of share options

Closing Granted Exercised

Exercise price Beginning during during End

Name or category Date of Vesting Exercise price before of year the year the year of year

of participant grant period period per Share grant* ’000 ’000 ’000 ’000

Employees:-

In aggregate 10th September 2002 N/A 10th September 2002 to HK$0.400 HK$0.305 — 4,000 (4,000) —

9th September 2012

In aggregate 30th September 2002 N/A 30th September 2002 to HK$0.390 HK$0.340 — 6,500 (6,500) —

29th September 2012

Sub-total — 10,500 (10,500) —

Total of New Share

Option Scheme — 10,500 (10,500) —

* The closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange of the trading date immediately before the grant of

the options.

The weighted average closing price in respect of the share options exercised during the year was

approximately HK$0.5050 per Share.

For the share options held by the Directors as disclosed in above table, these interests were personal

interests in VSC as described in Practice Note 5 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, no share options were granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the year.

Under the present capital structure of the Company, the exercise in full of the share options under the

New Share Option Scheme had resulted in the issue of 10,500,000 additional ordinary shares of the

Company and additional share capital of HK$1,050,000 and share premium of HK$3,085,000 (before

issue expenses).
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INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)
The Directors consider that it is not appropriate to state the value of the share options granted pursuant

to the New Share Option Scheme during the year to the employees. The Directors believe that any

statement regarding the value of the options will not be meaningful to the shareholders, taking into

account the diversified nature of the businesses of the VSC Group (i.e., ranging from (i) China Advanced

Materials Processing including manufacturing of industrial products such as rolled steel flat products

and enclosure systems and trading of industrial products such as engineering plastic resins and injection

moulding machines, and (ii) Construction Materials Group including trading and stockholding of

construction materials such as steel products, sanitary ware and kitchen cabinets and the installation

work of kitchen cabinets) and the fact that comparable data required for calculation of the value of the

options and the weighing of each of such data may not be representative of the diversified nature of the

businesses of the VSC Group.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE
None of the directors of VSC is aware of any information which would indicate that the VSC Group is

not, or was not, in compliance with the Code of Best Practice (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to

the Listing Rules at any time during the accounting year covered by the annual report, except that the

non-executive directors of VSC are not appointed for specific terms. However, the non-executive directors

are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with

VSC’s Bye-laws. In the opinion of the directors, this meets the objective of the Code.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
In compliance with the requirements set by the Stock Exchange, the VSC Group set up its Audit Committee

in December 1998. The Committee consists of three non-executive directors, Mr. Ting Woo Shou, Kenneth

as Chairman and Dr. Chow Yei Ching and Dr. Shao You Bao as members. Scope of the work of the Audit

Committee is defined and approved by the Board in relation to various internal control and audit issues

with a view to further improving our corporate governance. These audited consolidated accounts for

the year ended 31st March 2003 of VSC now reported on have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS
The accompanying accounts were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for the appointment

of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditors for the ensuing year is to be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Yao Cho Fai, Andrew

Chairman

Hong Kong, 10th June 2003
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13th Proof FILE: E_0305044Auditor / DATE: 19-06-2003 / JOB NO: 0305044(ce)-03(C) /  SIZE: 210mm(W) X 285mm(H)

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VAN SHUNG CHONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 65 to 112 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts which give a true and fair view.
In preparing accounts which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those accounts and to
report our opinion to you.

BASIS OF OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the company and of the group, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to
whether the accounts are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION
In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
group as at 31st March 2003 and of the group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended, and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 10th June 2003

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor Prince’s Building
Central Hong Kong

Auditors’ Report
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Note 2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 4 2,755,769 2,137,845

Cost of sales (2,536,655) (1,984,075)

Gross profit 219,114 153,770

Other revenue 4 11,690 9,208

Selling and distribution expenses (17,107) (13,798)

General and administrative expenses (135,148) (130,452)

(Deficit)/Surplus on revaluation of investment properties (1,500) 1,160

Operating profit 5 77,049 19,888

Finance cost 7 (11,144) (7,908)

Share of loss of associates — (88)

Profit before taxation 65,905 11,892

Taxation 9 (2,164) (760)

Profit after taxation but before minority interests 63,741 11,132

Minority interests (3,329) (1,022)

Profit attributable to shareholders 10 60,412 10,110

Dividends 11 (18,111) (9,230)

Earnings per share 13

— Basic HK17.4 cents HK2.8 cents

— Diluted HK17.3 cents HK2.8 cents
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Consolidated Company

Note 2003 2002 2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current assets

Property, plant and

equipment 14 125,789 123,248 — —

Investment properties 15 31,000 32,500 — —

Investment in subsidiaries 16 — — 352,146 400,685

Investment in associates 17 2 2 — —

Long-term investments 18 45,711 32,561 — —

Goodwill 19 4,624 6,474 — —

Total non-current assets 207,126 194,785 352,146 400,685

Current assets

Inventories 20 381,477 217,775 — —

Gross amount due from

customers for installation

contract work 21 19,034 1,891 — —

Prepayments, deposits and

other receivables 79,520 41,444 — —

Accounts receivable 3 & 22 655,025 470,894 — —

Loans receivable 23 6,891 10,843 — —

Due from a subsidiary 16 — — 72,000 3,000

Pledged bank deposit 24 7,957 3,021 — —

Cash and other bank

deposits 24 61,674 45,533 164 164

Total current assets 1,211,578 791,401 72,164 3,164
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Consolidated Company

Note 2003 2002 2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings 25 590,667 262,982 — —

Accounts and bills payable 26 212,020 152,571 — —

Receipts in advance 29,782 6,075 — —

Accrued liabilities and other

payables 27,938 33,980 381 10

Gross amount due to

customers for installation

contract work 21 4,590 — — —

Taxation payable 6,076 2,445 — —

Total current liabilities 871,073 458,053 381 10

Net current assets 340,505 333,348 71,783 3,154

Total assets less current

liabilities 547,631 528,133 423,929 403,839

Non-current liabilities

Long-term bank loan,

non-current portion 27 20,475 — — —

Deferred taxation 28 250 250 — —

Total non-current liabilities 20,725 250 — —

Minority interests 6,502 4,573 — —

Net assets 520,404 523,310 423,929 403,839

Representing:

Share capital 29 31,226 35,498 31,226 35,498

Reserves 32 489,178 487,812 392,703 368,341

Shareholders’ equity 520,404 523,310 423,929 403,839

Yao Cho Fai, Andrew Yao Che Li, Miriam

Chairman Executive Director
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Note 2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Operating activities

Net cash inflow generated from operation 33(a) 29,293 130,141

Interest received 4,887 2,720

Interest paid (11,144) (7,908)

Hong Kong profits tax paid (2,801) (6,121)

Hong Kong profits tax refunded 10,097 —

Mainland China enterprise income tax paid (844) (231)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 29,488 118,601

Investing activities

Additions of property, plant and equipment (23,359) (42,298)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 529 2,420

Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary (1,890) —

Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary 33(b) 470 —

Acquisition of a long-term investment (24,960) —

Acquisition of a business — (19,722)

Receipt of return from a joint venture 6,615 6,488

Dividend received from a long-term investment 188 —

Translation adjustments 30 78

Net cash outflow from investing activities (42,377) (53,034)

Financing activities 33(c)

Proceeds from issue of shares 4,135 1

Repurchase of shares (53,117) (307)

New bank loans 47,025 56,700

Repayment of bank loans (2,362) (36,180)

New other short-term loans 37,800 —

Capital contribution by minority shareholders of

a subsidiary 3,583 945

Dividends paid to a minority shareholder of a subsidiary (258) (315)

Dividends paid to shareholders (2,840) (88,106)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 33,966 (67,262)

Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 21,077 (1,695)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 48,554 50,249

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 33(d) 69,631 48,554
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Note 2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Balance as at beginning of year 523,310 656,758

Profit attributable to shareholders 32 60,412 10,110

Proceeds from issue of shares, net of share issue

expenses 29 & 32 4,135 1

Repurchase of shares 29 & 32 (53,117) (307)

Change in fair value of long-term investments 32 (12,089) (54,773)

Release of asset revaluation reserve upon disposal of

a long-term investment 32 563 —

Translation adjustments 32 30 (373)

Payment of dividends to shareholders 32 (2,840) (88,106)

Balance as at end of year 520,404 523,310
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1 ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited (“VSC”) was incorporated in Bermuda on 12th January 1994

as an exempted company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. Its shares have been listed

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 18th February 1994.

VSC is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) China Advanced

Materials Processing including manufacturing of industrial products such as rolled steel flat products

and enclosure systems and trading of industrial products such as engineering plastic resins and

injection moulding machines, and (ii) Construction Materials Group including trading and

stockholding of construction materials such as steel products, sanitary ware and kitchen cabinets

and the installation work of kitchen cabinets.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in

Hong Kong and comply with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these accounts are set out below:

(a) Basis of measurement

The accounts are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for investment properties and

long-term investments which are carried at revalued amounts (see Notes 2.i and 2.j).

(b) Adoption of new/revised Statements of Standard Accounting Practice

Commencing from 1st April 2002, VSC and its subsidiaries (together the “VSC Group”) have

adopted the following Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) issued by the

Hong Kong Society of Accountants:

SSAP 1 (revised) : Presentation of financial statements

SSAP 11 (revised) : Foreign currency translation

SSAP 15 (revised) : Cash flow statements

SSAP 34 : Employee benefits

Except for certain presentational changes which have been made upon the adoption of SSAP

1 (revised) and SSAP 15 (revised), the adoption of the above new/revised SSAPs has no material

effect on the accounts.

The 2002 comparative figures presented herein have incorporated the effect on the adoption

of the new/revised SSAPs.



Notes to the Accounts

71

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(c) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of VSC and its subsidiaries, together with the

VSC Group’s share of post-acquisition results and reserves of its associates under the equity

method of accounting. The results of subsidiaries and associates acquired or disposed of

during the year are consolidated from or to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal.

The gain or loss on disposal of a subsidiary represents the difference between the proceeds of

the sale and the VSC Group’s share of its net assets together with any unamortised goodwill

or negative goodwill taken to reserve and which was not previously charged or recognised in

the consolidated profit and loss account and any related cumulative foreign currency translation

adjustments.

Any significant intercompany transactions and balances within the VSC Group are eliminated

on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the operating results and

net assets of subsidiaries.

(d) Goodwill

Goodwill arises where the fair value of the consideration given exceeds the VSC Group’s share

of the aggregate fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill is recognised as

an asset in the balance sheet and is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated

economic life. The carrying value of goodwill is assessed periodically or when factors indicating

an impairment are present. Any impairment of goodwill is recognised as an expense in the

period in which the impairment occurs.

(e) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the VSC directly or indirectly controls more than one

half of the voting power, has the power to govern the financial and operating policies, to

appoint or remove the majority of the members of the board of directors, or to cast majority

votes at the meetings of the board of directors.

In VSC’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for

impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by VSC on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(f) Associates

An associate is a company over which the VSC Group has significant influence, but not control

or joint control, over its financial and operating policy decisions. In the consolidated accounts,

investment in associates is accounted for under the equity method of accounting, whereby

the investment is initially recorded at cost and is adjusted thereafter to recognise the VSC

Group’s share of the post-acquisition results of associates, distributions received from associates,

other necessary alterations in the VSC Group’s proportionate interest in associates arising

from changes in the equity of associates that have not been included in the profit and loss

account of associates, amortisation of the difference between the cost of investment and the

VSC Group’s share of the aggregate fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired at the

date of acquisition (goodwill), and any impairment loss. The VSC Group’s share of post-

acquisition results of associates is included in the consolidated profit and loss account.

(g) Contractual joint ventures

A contractual joint venture is an entity established between the VSC Group and one or more

other parties for a pre-determined period of time, with the rights and obligations of the joint

venture partners being governed by a contract. If the VSC Group is able to govern and control

the financial and operating policies of the contractual joint venture so as to obtain benefits

from its activities, such joint venture is considered as a de facto subsidiary and is accounted

for as a subsidiary. If the VSC Group can only exercise significant influence over the contractual

joint venture, such joint venture is accounted for as an associate.

(h) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than investment properties and construction-in-progress,

are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss. Major expenditures

on modifications and betterments of property, plant and equipment which will increase their

future economic benefits are capitalised, while expenditures on maintenance and repairs are

expensed when incurred. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis to write off the cost

of each asset over its estimated useful life. The annual rates of depreciation are as follows:

Land 2% (lease terms)

Buildings 2.5% to 4%

Furniture and equipment 15% to 33%

Machinery 10% to 25%

Motor vehicles 20%
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(h) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Cont’d)

The depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically to ensure that the methods

and rates of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from

property, plant and equipment.

Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the profit and

loss account based on the net disposal proceeds less the then carrying amount of the assets.

Construction-in-progress represents leasehold improvements under construction. It is stated

at cost less any impairment loss. Cost includes construction expenditures incurred and other

costs attributable to the construction of the buildings. No depreciation is provided in respect

of construction-in-progress until the construction work is completed.

(i) Investment properties

Investment properties are leasehold interests in land and buildings held for their long-term

investment potential. These properties are included in the balance sheet at their open market

value on the basis of an annual valuation by independent qualified valuers. All changes in the

value of investment properties are dealt with in the investment property revaluation reserve

unless the balance of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit on a portfolio basis, in which

case the net deficit is charged to the profit and loss account. When an investment property is

disposed of, previously recognised revaluation surpluses are reversed and the gain or loss on

disposal reported in the profit and loss account is determined based on the net disposal

proceeds less the original cost.

No depreciation is provided for investment properties unless the unexpired lease term is 20

years or less, in which case depreciation is provided on the then carrying value over the

unexpired lease term.

(j) Long-term investments

Long-term investments are included in the balance sheet at their fair value. Any change in the

fair value on such investments is recognised directly in shareholders’ equity in the asset

revaluation reserve until the investments are sold or otherwise disposed of or until the

investments are determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is

recognised in the profit and loss account. Transfers from the asset revaluation reserve to the

profit and loss account as a result of impairment are reversed when circumstances and events

that led to the write-downs or write-offs cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence that

the new circumstances and events will persist for the foreseeable future.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(k) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes costs of raw

materials computed using the first-in, first-out method of costing and, in the case of work-in-

progress and finished goods, also direct labour and an appropriate proportion of production

overheads. Net realisable value is based on the estimated selling price in the ordinary course

of business, less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal. Provision is

made for obsolete, slow-moving or defective items where appropriate.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense

in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of

inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in

the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of

inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the

amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(l) Installation contracts

When the outcome of an installation contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and

costs associated with the contract are recognised as revenue and expenses, respectively, by

reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity. When it is probable that total

contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense

immediately. When the outcome of an installation contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue

is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable

and contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Installation contracts-in-progress at the balance sheet date are recorded at the amount of

costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses and progress billings, and are

presented in the balance sheet as gross amount due from customers for installation contract

work, an asset; or gross amount due to customers for installation contract work, a liability,

where applicable. Amounts billed but not yet paid by customers for work performed on a

contract, including retentions, are included in the balance sheet as accounts receivable.

(m) Accounts receivable

Provision is made against accounts receivable to the extent they are considered to be doubtful.

Accounts receivable in the balance sheet are stated net of such provision, if any.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(n) Impairment of assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate

that the carrying amount of one of these assets may not be recoverable. Whenever the carrying

amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss representing the

difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount of an asset is recognised

in the profit and loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling

price and value in use. The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset

in an arm’s length transaction less the costs of the disposal, while value in use is the present

value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset

and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

Reversal of an impairment loss of an asset recognised in prior years is recorded when there is

an indication that the impairment loss recognised for the asset no longer exists or has decreased.

The reversal is recorded in the profit and loss account.

(o) Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when there is a present obligation, legal or constructive, as a result

of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits

will be required to settle the obligations, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount

of the obligations. Provisions are reviewed regularly and adjusted to reflect the current best

estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of a provision

is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the accounts. They are disclosed unless the possibility

of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not

recognised in the accounts but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(p) Turnover and revenue recognition

Turnover (net of applicable value-added tax) represents (i) the net invoiced value of merchandise

sold after allowances for returns and discounts, (ii) revenue recognised for installation contracts

and (iii) rental income. Revenue is recognised on the following bases:

(i) Sales revenue

Sales revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the

merchandise have been transferred to customers.

(ii) Revenue from installation contracts

Revenue from each individual installation contract is recognised using the percentage-

of-completion method by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity

primarily based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date

to estimated total contract costs (see Note 2.l).

(iii) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the relevant leases.

(iv) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

(v) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal

amounts outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

Advance payments received from customers prior to delivery of merchandise or before

commencement of installation contract work are recorded as receipts in advance.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(q) Taxation

Individual companies within the VSC Group provide for profits tax on the basis of their profit

for financial reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expense items which are not

assessable or deductible for profits tax purposes.

Deferred taxation is provided under the liability method, at the current tax rate, in respect of

significant timing differences between profit as computed for taxation purposes and profit as

stated in the accounts, except when it is considered that no liability will arise in the foreseeable

future. Deferred tax assets are not recognised unless the related benefits are expected to

crystallise in the foreseeable future.

(r) Employee retirement benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.

A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the

time of the leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The VSC Group’s contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes are expensed

as incurred.

(s) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisitions, construction or production

of an asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are

capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit

and loss account in the year in which they are incurred.

(t) Operating leases

Operating leases represent leases under which substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the leased assets remain with the lessors. Rental payments under operating

leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of the

relevant leases.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(u) Foreign currency translation

Individual companies within the VSC Group maintain their books and records in the primary

currencies of their respective operations (“functional currencies”). In the accounts of the

individual companies, transactions in other currencies during the year are translated into the

functional currencies at the applicable rates of exchange prevailing at the time of the

transaction; monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies are translated

into the respective functional currencies at the applicable rates of exchange in effect at the

balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in the profit and loss account of

the individual companies.

The VSC Group prepares consolidated accounts in Hong Kong dollars. For the purpose of

consolidation, all the assets and liabilities of subsidiaries with functional currencies other than

Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the applicable rates of exchange

in effect at the balance sheet date; all income and expense items are translated at the applicable

average exchange rates during the year. Exchange differences arising from such translation

are dealt with as movements of cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments.

(v) Segments

In accordance with the VSC Group’s internal financial reporting, the VSC Group has determined

to present business segments as the primary reporting format and geographical segments as

the secondary reporting format.

For segment presentation, capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and

equipment, investment properties, investment in associates and long-term investments.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, turnover is based on the destination of shipment

of merchandise or the location for the provision of services. Total assets and capital expenditure

are classified where the assets are located.

(w) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of the cash

flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments which are

readily convertible into known amounts of cash without notice.
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3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the

other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating

decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common

significant influence.

(a) Details of significant transactions with related parties were:

Name of related party/Nature of transaction 2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Metal Logistics Company Limited (i)

— Sales made by the VSC Group 287,413 231,402

— Administrative service fees earned by the VSC Group 180 180

— Interest earned by the VSC Group 4,616 1,336

— Commission for procurement services paid/payable by

 the VSC Group 1,552 1,406

iSteelAsia (Hong Kong) Limited (i)

— Rental earned by the VSC Group 600 810

— Administrative service fees earned by the VSC Group 180 180

EC.com Limited (ii)

— Rental earned by the VSC Group 383 1,011

Notes:

(i) Metal Logistics Company Limited and iSteelAsia (Hong Kong) Limited are wholly owned by

iSteelAsia.com Limited, a company in which the VSC Group has a 19.2% equity interest as at 31st

March 2003 (2002: 17.8%).

(ii) EC.com Limited is beneficially owned by Mr. Tsang Kwok Tai, Moses, a former non-executive

director of VSC, who resigned on 17th August 2002, and the amounts of such related party

transactions were disclosed up to that date.
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3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)
(b) The amounts due from a related company arising from transactions described in Note 3.a are

included in accounts receivable. Details of these balances are as follows:

Maximum

balance

outstanding

during

Name of related party 2003 2002 the year

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Metal Logistics Company Limited (i) 210,202 137,711 210,202

Note:

(i) The balance, arising mainly from the purchases of steel, was unsecured, repayable within the VSC

Group’s normal credit term for trading transactions and bore interest at commercial lending rates

for overdue balances.

4 TURNOVER AND REVENUE
Turnover and revenue consisted of:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Manufacturing of industrial products
— Processing of rolled steel flat products 277,302 234,899
— Enclosure systems 39,986 5,609

Trading of industrial products
— Engineering plastic resins and injection moulding machines 155,063 142,988

Stockholding and trading of construction materials
— Steel products – rebars, structural steel and flat products 2,138,344 1,679,085
— Sanitary ware, tiles and kitchen cabinets 41,463 29,679
— Processed rebars — 12,733
— Revenue from installation work of kitchen cabinets 99,795 26,317

Rental income 3,816 6,535

Total turnover 2,755,769 2,137,845

Interest income 4,887 2,720
Dividend income from a long-term investment 188 —
Return from a joint venture (i) 6,615 6,488

Total revenue 2,767,459 2,147,053

Note:

(i) During the year ended 31st March 2003, the VSC Group received a return of approximately HK$6,615,000

(2002: HK$6,488,000) from a joint venture, which was written off in prior years.
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5 OPERATING PROFIT
Operating profit is determined after charging or crediting the following items:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

After charging —

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) (see Note 6) 65,593 59,185

Operating lease rentals of premises 11,804 11,550

Provision for/Write-off of bad and doubtful accounts receivable 2,839 6,649

Provision for doubtful loans receivable 1,052 16,074

Provision for and write-off of inventories 2,963 3,276

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 20,132 11,715

Amortisation of goodwill 1,850 924

Loss on disposal of a long-term investment 284 —

Net exchange loss 393 113

Auditors’ remuneration 788 808

After crediting —

Rental income from

— related companies (see Note 3.a) 983 1,821

— third parties 2,833 4,714

Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 51 389

Interest income from

— bank deposits 203 816

— other deposits 1 1

— overdue accounts receivable 67 567

— amounts due from a related company (see Note 3.a) 4,616 1,336

Dividend income from a long-term investment 188 —
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6 STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
Staff costs consisted of:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Salaries and allowances 57,519 52,854

Bonuses 6,000 5,030

Pension costs

— defined contribution schemes (see Note 36) 2,489 2,163

— forfeited contribution (415) (862)

65,593 59,185

7 FINANCE COST
Finance cost consisted of:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Interest expense on

— bank loans wholly repayable within five years 10,263 7,908

— other short-term loans wholly repayable within five years 881 —

11,144 7,908

8 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS
(a) Details of directors’ emoluments were:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Fees for executive directors — —

Fees for non-executive directors 519 320

Other emoluments for executive directors

— Salaries and allowances 3,658 5,378

— Discretionary bonuses * 2,500 2,200

— Retirement contributions 72 61

6,749 7,959

* The executive directors were entitled to discretionary bonuses which were determined with

reference to the financial performance of the VSC Group.
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8 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)
(a) Details of directors’ emoluments were: (Cont’d)

In addition to the above-mentioned emoluments, the VSC Group provided a residential

apartment (included in land and buildings) to an executive director for his residence, and the

annual rateable value of the apartment amounting to approximately HK$1,038,000 (2002:

HK$1,038,000).

No director waived any emolument during the year. No incentive payment for joining the VSC

Group or compensation for loss of office was paid/payable to any directors during the year.

Analysis of directors’ emoluments (including the rateable value of the apartment used as a

director’s residence) by number of directors and emolument ranges is as follows:

2003 2002

Executive directors

— Nil to HK$1,000,000 4 2

— HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 1

— HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 2

— HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 — 1

— HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 —

7 6

Non-executive directors

— Nil to HK$1,000,000 5 4

12 10

(b) The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the VSC Group for the year include

three (2002: four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note

8.a above. The emoluments paid/payable to the remaining individual were as follows:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Salaries and allowances 2,339 1,270

Retirement contributions 63 35

2,402 1,305
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9 TAXATION
Taxation consisted of:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

VSC and subsidiaries —

Current taxation

Hong Kong profits tax

— Current year 4,080 2,773

— Overprovision in prior years (5,097) (425)

Mainland China enterprise income tax 3,181 232

Write-back of deferred taxation — (1,820)

2,164 760

VSC is exempt from taxation in Bermuda until 2016.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at 16% (2002: 16%) on the estimated assessable profit

arising in or derived from Hong Kong.

The subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject to Mainland China enterprise income

tax at rates ranging from 15% to 33% (2002: 15% to 33%). However, subsidiaries engaging in

manufacturing are exempt from Mainland China enterprise income tax for two years starting from

the first year of profitable operations after offsetting prior years’ tax losses, followed by a 50%

reduction for the next three years.

10 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders includes a profit of approximately

HK$71,912,000 (2002: HK$9,143,000) dealt with in the accounts of VSC.
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11 DIVIDENDS
Dividends consisted of:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Interim dividend of nil (2002: HK$0.018) per ordinary share — 6,390

Proposed final dividend of HK$0.058 (2002: HK$0.008)

per ordinary share 18,111 2,840

18,111 9,230

12 RETAINED PROFIT
Retained profit consisted of:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

VSC 7,786 7,102

Subsidiaries 108,535 120,035

Associates (1,476) (1,476)

114,845 125,661

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31st March 2003 is based on the

consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of approximately HK$60,412,000 (2002:

HK$10,110,000) and the weighted average number of approximately 347,859,000 shares (2002:

355,130,000 shares) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st March 2003 is based on the

consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of approximately HK$60,412,000 (2002:

HK$10,110,000) and the diluted weighted average number of approximately 348,324,000 shares

(2002: 356,091,000 shares) in issue after adjusting for the potential dilutive effect in respect of

outstanding employee share options.
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements of property, plant and equipment (consolidated) were:

2003 2002

Furniture

Land and Construction- and Motor

buildings in-progress equipment Machinery vehicles Total Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost

Beginning of year 72,956 — 40,645 47,989 5,612 167,202 135,531

Additions 1,331 6,152 7,390 7,475 1,011 23,359 42,298

Attributable to

acquisition of

a business — — — — — — 8,851

Disposals (514) — (37) (1,953) — (2,504) (19,311)

Attributable to disposal

of a subsidiary — — (91) — (142) (233) —

Translation adjustments — — — — — — (167)

End of year 73,773 6,152 47,907 53,511 6,481 187,824 167,202

Accumulated

depreciation and

impairment loss

Beginning of year 11,052 — 13,871 17,178 1,853 43,954 49,235

Provision for the year 2,223 — 12,734 4,141 1,034 20,132 11,715

Disposals (62) — (11) (1,953) — (2,026) (17,280)

Attributable to disposal

of a subsidiary — — (9) — (16) (25) —

Translation adjustments — — — — — — 284

End of year 13,213 — 26,585 19,366 2,871 62,035 43,954

Net book value

End of year 60,560 6,152 21,322 34,145 3,610 125,789 123,248

Beginning of year 61,904 — 26,774 30,811 3,759 123,248 86,296
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)
Details of the geographical locations and tenure of land and buildings (consolidated) were:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Hong Kong

— leases of between 10 to 50 years 15,845 16,214

— leases over 50 years 29,162 30,171

Mainland China

— land use right of between 10 to 50 years 15,553 15,519

60,560 61,904

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Movements of investment properties (consolidated) were:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Beginning of year 32,500 31,340

(Deficit)/Surplus on revaluation (1,500) 1,160

End of year 31,000 32,500

Details of the geographical locations and tenure of investment properties (consolidated) were:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Hong Kong

— leases of between 10 to 50 years 15,500 16,000

— leases of over 50 years 10,700 11,700

Mainland China

— land use right over 50 years 4,800 4,800

31,000 32,500

Investment properties were stated at open market value as at 31st March 2003 as determined by

Jointgoal Surveyors Limited, independent qualified valuers.
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)
The VSC Group leases out certain investment properties under operating leases, for an initial period

of one to two years, with an option to renew on renegotiated terms. None of the leases includes

contingent rentals. During the year ended 31st March 2003, the gross rental income from investment

properties amounted to approximately HK$2,143,000 (2002: HK$2,589,000). As at 31st March

2003, the VSC Group’s future rental income under non-cancellable operating leases was as follows:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Not later than one year 1,347 2,322

Later than one year and not later than five years 48 1,357

1,395 3,679

16 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
In VSC’s balance sheet, investment in subsidiaries consisted of:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted shares, at cost 71,746 71,746

Due from subsidiaries 280,400 328,939

352,146 400,685

Approximately HK$280,400,000 (2002: HK$328,939,000) of the amounts due from subsidiaries

are unsecured, non-interest bearing, and not repayable within one year. The amount due from a

subsidiary of HK$72,000,000 (2002: HK$3,000,000), classified under current assets, is unsecured,

non-interest bearing and has no pre-determined repayment terms.

The underlying value of the investment in subsidiaries is, in the opinion of VSC’s Directors and the

VSC Group’s management, not less than the carrying value as at 31st March 2003.
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16 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)
Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st March 2003 were:

Place of Issued and fully paid Percentage of equity

incorporation share capital/ interest attributable to Principal

Name and operations registered capital the VSC Group (i) activities

Dongguan Van Mainland China HK$23,000,000 100% Processing of

Shung Chong Steel rolled steel flat

Products Co., Ltd. (iii) products

Pulsar Enterprises Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ US$2 100% Property holding

Hong Kong

Senior Rich Hong Kong HK$380 ordinary 100% Property holding

Development HK$10,000 non- 100%

Limited voting deferred (ii)

Shanghai Bao Shun Mainland China US$600,000 66.7% Trading and

Chang International stockholding of

Trading Co., Ltd. (iii) steel

Shun Bao International British Virgin Islands/ US$2 100% Property holding

Enterprise Limited Hong Kong

Tianjin Van Shung Mainland China HK$11,700,000 100% Processing of

Chong Steel Products rolled steel flat

Co., Ltd. (iii) products

Tomahawk Capital Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% Finance business

Limited

Van Shung Chong British Virgin Islands US$6 100% Investment holding

(B.V.I.) Limited
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16 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)
Place of Issued and fully paid Percentage of equity

incorporation share capital/ interest attributable to Principal

Name and operations registered capital the VSC Group (i) activities

Van Shung Chong Hong Kong HK$2,000 ordinary 100% Trading and

Hong Limited HK$10,000,000 100% stockholding of

non-voting deferred (ii) steel and provision of

management

services

Vantage Godown Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% Provision of

Company Limited warehousing

services

VJY Telecommunication Mainland China HK$15,000,000 100% Manufacture of

Equipment (Shenzhen) enclosure systems

Company Limited (iii)

VSC (Beijing) British Virgin Islands US$2 100% Investment holding

Investment Ltd.

VSC Building Products Hong Kong HK$2 100% Trading of sanitary

Company Limited ware and kitchen

cabinets and kitchen

cabinet installation

VSC Energy British Virgin Islands/ US$2 100% Property holding

Development Limited Mainland China

VSC Plastics Company Hong Kong HK$2 100% Trading of plastics and

Limited injection moulding

machines

VSC Property Holdings British Virgin Islands US$2 100% Investment holding

Limited
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16 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Place of Issued and fully paid Percentage of equity

incorporation share capital/ interest attributable to Principal

Name and operations registered capital the VSC Group (i) activities

VSC Steel Company Hong Kong HK$38,000 ordinary 100% Trading and

Limited HK$20,000,000 100% stockholding of

non-voting deferred (ii) steel

VSC Steel Products Hong Kong HK$2 100% Trading of processed

Company Limited rolled steel flat

products

Notes:

(i) The shares of Van Shung Chong (B.V.I.) Limited are held directly by VSC. The shares of other subsidiaries

are held indirectly.

(ii) These non-voting deferred shares are owned by the VSC Group. The non-voting deferred shares have

no voting rights, are not entitled to dividends, and are not entitled to any distributions upon winding

up unless a sum of HK$2,000,000,000 per share has been distributed to the holders of ordinary shares

for Van Shung Chong Hong Limited or a sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the

holders of ordinary shares for VSC Steel Company Limited and Senior Rich Development Limited.

(iii) Dongguan Van Shung Chong Steel Products Co., Ltd. is a contractual joint venture established in Mainland

China with an operating period of 12 years to 2007. Shanghai Bao Shun Chang International Trading

Co., Ltd. is an equity joint venture established in Mainland China with an operating period of 20 years

to 2014. Tianjin Van Shung Chong Steel Products Co., Ltd. is a wholly foreign owned enterprise

established in Mainland China with an operating period of 50 years to 2052. VJY Telecommunication

Equipment (Shenzhen) Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland

China with an operating period of 15 years to 2016.

The above summary lists the principal subsidiaries which principally affected the results or formed

a substantial portion of the net assets of the VSC Group. To give details of other subsidiaries

would, in the opinion of VSC’s Directors and the VSC Group’s management, result in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time during the year ended 31st March

2003.



Notes to the Accounts

92

17 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES
Investment in associates (consolidated) consisted of:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Advance to an associate 12,534 12,534

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (12,532) (12,532)

2 2

The advance to an associate is unsecured, non-interest bearing and not repayable within one year.

Details of the associates as at 31st March 2003 were:

Place of Issued and Percentage of

incorporation fully paid equity interest

Name and operations share capital held indirectly Principal activity

Dongguan Luen Tung Mainland China HK$20,418,128 30% Provision of pier

Harbour & Dock services

Co., Ltd. (i)

Steel Supreme British Virgin Islands/ US$100 30% Provision of pier

Limited Mainland China services

Note:

(i) Dongguan Luen Tung Harbour & Dock Co., Ltd. is a contractual joint venture established in Mainland

China with an operating period of 20 years to 2015.

The underlying value of the investment in associates is, in the opinion of VSC’s Directors and the

VSC Group’s management, not less than the carrying value as at 31st March 2003.
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18 LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
Long-term investments (consolidated) consisted of:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Investment in shares listed in Hong Kong

At cost 42,438 42,722

Change in fair value (27,206) (15,680)

15,232 27,042

Unlisted investments

At cost 30,576 5,616

Accumulated impairment loss (97) (97)

30,479 5,519

45,711 32,561

As at 31st March 2003, the investment in shares listed in Hong Kong represents approximately

19.2% (2002: 17.8%) equity interests in iSteelAsia.com Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda

and whose shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited. This investment was stated in the balance sheet at its quoted market value as at 31st

March 2003.
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19 GOODWILL
Movements of goodwill (consolidated) were:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost

Beginning of year 67,454 60,056

Acquisition of a business — 7,398

End of year 67,454 67,454

Accumulated amortisation

Beginning of year 60,980 60,056

Amortisation for the year 1,850 924

End of year 62,830 60,980

Net book value

End of year 4,624 6,474

Beginning of year 6,474 —
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20 INVENTORIES
Inventories (consolidated) consisted of steel rebars, H-piles, sheet piles, rolled steel flat products,

enclosure systems, sanitary ware, kitchen cabinets, engineering plastic resins and machinery spare

parts for trading purposes.

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Gross inventories 385,466 224,396

Less: Provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories (3,989) (6,621)

381,477 217,775

As at 31st March 2003, inventories of approximately HK$52,874,000 (2002: HK$12,616,000) were

stated at net realisable value.

As at 31st March 2003, inventories of a subsidiary amounting to approximately HK$14,950,000

(2002: HK$8,505,000) were pledged as collaterals of certain of the VSC Group’s short-term bank

loans and certain inventories were held under trust receipts bank loan arrangements (see Notes 25

and 37).

21 GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR INSTALLATION CONTRACT WORK
Gross amount due from customers for installation contract work (consolidated) consisted of:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Costs plus recognised profits less foreseeable losses 98,010 21,105

Less: Progress billings received and receivable (78,976) (19,214)

19,034 1,891

Gross amount due to customers for installation contract work (consolidated) consisted of:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Costs plus recognised profits less foreseeable losses 21,539 —

Less: Progress billings received and receivable (26,129) —

(4,590) —
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22 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
A major portion of the VSC Group’s turnover are transacted on an open account basis, with credit

periods ranging from 30 to 90 days.

Ageing analysis of accounts receivable (consolidated) was as follows:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

0 to 60 days 416,753 358,439

61 to 120 days 151,048 93,837

121 to 180 days 42,336 17,281

181 to 365 days 43,175 3,616

Over 365 days 16,289 19,036

669,601 492,209

Less: Provision for bad and doubtful receivables (14,576) (21,315)

655,025 470,894

As at 31st March 2003, retentions from installation contract work of approximately HK$5,265,000

(2002: HK$920,000) were included in accounts receivable, which were not paid until the satisfaction

of conditions specified in the contracts for the payment of such amounts.

23 LOANS RECEIVABLE
Loans receivable (consolidated) consisted of:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost 32,939 35,839

Less: Provision for doubtful loans receivable (26,048) (24,996)

6,891 10,843

Loans receivable bore interest at rates of Hong Kong Inter-bank Offer Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 3% or

30% per annum (2002: HIBOR plus 3% or 30% per annum).
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24 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS
As at 31st March 2003, approximately HK$32,423,000 (2002: HK$25,935,000) of the VSC Group’s

cash and bank deposits, including pledged bank deposit, were denominated in Chinese Renminbi,

a currency which is not freely convertible into other currencies.

25 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
Short-term borrowings (consolidated) consisted of:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Bank loans

— Trust receipts bank loans 490,879 225,182

— Short-term bank loans 59,063 37,800

— Long-term bank loan, current portion (see Note 27) 2,925 —

552,867 262,982

Other loans 37,800 —

590,667 262,982

Details of the VSC Group’s banking facilities are set out in Note 37.

Other loans represented short-term loans from a minority shareholder of a subsidiary and a company

relating to the minority shareholder. These loans are unsecured and bear interest at 5.04% to

5.54% per annum.

26 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE
Ageing analysis of accounts and bills payable (consolidated) was as follows:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

0 to 60 days 196,722 145,288

61 to 120 days 6,042 1,920

121 to 180 days 2,235 1,761

181 to 365 days 1,982 1,000

Over 365 days 5,039 2,602

212,020 152,571
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27 LONG-TERM BANK LOAN
Long-term bank loan (consolidated) consisted of:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Amounts repayable

— within one year 2,925 —

— within one to two years 11,700 —

— within two to three years 8,775 —

23,400 —

Less: Amount due within one year included under

 current liabilities (see Note 25) (2,925) —

20,475 —

Details of the VSC Group’s banking facilities are set out in Note 37.

28 DEFERRED TAXATION
Movements of deferred taxation (consolidated) were:

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Beginning of year 250 2,070

Write-back of net timing differences — (1,820)

End of year 250 250

Deferred taxation represented the taxation effect of accelerated depreciation of property, plant

and equipment for taxation purposes.

There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at 31st March 2003. No deferred tax on

the asset revaluation reserve has been provided because the revaluations do not constitute a timing

difference as the VSC Group intends to hold the related assets for long term.
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29 SHARE CAPITAL
Movements were:

2003 2002

Number of Nominal Number of Nominal

shares value shares value

’000 HK$’000 ’000 HK$’000

Authorised (Ordinary shares of

HK$0.10 each) 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid (Ordinary

shares of HK$0.10 each):

Beginning of year 354,979 35,498 355,288 35,529

Issue of shares upon exercise of

warrants (see Note 30) — — 1 —

Issue of shares upon exercise of

employee share options

(see Note 31) 10,500 1,050 — —

Repurchase of shares (i) (53,222) (5,322) (310) (31)

End of year 312,257 31,226 354,979 35,498

Note:

(i) During the year ended 31st March 2003, VSC repurchased 53,222,263 shares (2002: 310,000 shares)

for an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$53,117,000 (2002: HK$307,000), including

transaction costs. These shares were subsequently cancelled. The aggregate cost for the repurchase of

shares was transferred from retained profit to capital redemption reserve. Details of such repurchases

during the year ended 31st March 2003 were as follows:

Number of shares Price per Amount

Month of repurchase repurchased share paid

’000 HK$’000

January 2003 53,222 HK$0.98 52,158

Transaction costs 959

53,117
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30 WARRANTS
Movements of warrants were:

Number of warrants

Exercise price Beginning End of

Date of issue Exercise period per share of year Exercised year

’000 ’000 ’000

12th November 2001 19th November 2001 HK$1.18 35,497 — 35,497

to 18th November 2004

During the year ended 31st March 2003, approximately 120 warrants (2002: 1,000 warrants) were

exercised to subscribe for approximately 120 shares (2002: 1,000 shares) of VSC at a consideration

of approximately HK$142 (2002: HK$1,180).

31 EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS
VSC had an employee share option scheme (the “Old Share Option Scheme”), under which it may

grant options to employees (including executive directors) of the VSC Group to subscribe for shares

in VSC, subject to a maximum of 10% of the nominal value of the issued share capital of VSC from

time to time, excluding for this purpose shares issued on the exercise of options. The exercise price

was to be determined by VSC’s board of directors, and was not less than the higher of the nominal

value of the shares and 80% of the average of the closing prices of VSC’s shares quoted on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the five trading days immediately preceding the date of

offer of the options.

Following the amendment of the Listing Rules, during the year ended 31st March 2002, VSC adopted

a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) to replace the Old Share Option

Scheme. However, all options granted prior to the adoption of the New Share Option Scheme shall

continue to be exercisable in accordance with the terms of the Old Share Option Scheme. Under

the New Share Option Scheme, VSC may grant options to any person being an employee, agent,

consultant or representative (including executive directors and non-executive directors) of the VSC

Group to subscribe for shares in VSC, subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the

issued share capital of VSC from time to time, excluding for this purpose shares issued on the

exercise of options. The exercise price will be determined by VSC’s board of directors and shall be

at least the highest of (i) the closing price of VSC’s shares quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited on the date of grant of the options, (ii) the average closing prices of VSC’s shares

quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the five trading days immediately preceding

the date of grant of the options, and (iii) the nominal value of VSC’s shares of HK$0.10 each.
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31 EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS (Cont’d)
Movements of employee share options were:

Number of employee share options

Exercise Beginning End of

Date of grant Exercise period price per share of year Granted Exercised Lapsed year

’000 ’000 ’000 ’000 ’000

Old Share Option Scheme

3rd March 1994 1st April 1996 to 31st March 2003 HK$0.9360 6,000 — — (6,000) —

17th December 1994 15th January 1997 to 15th January 2004 HK$1.1344 6,500 — — — 6,500

18th January 1996 15th January 1997 to 15th January 2004 HK$1.2528 4,000 — — — 4,000

18th March 1996 1st May 1998 to 22nd January 2004 HK$1.3840 3,300 — — — 3,300

10th January 2000 1st February 2002 to 22nd January 2004 HK$1.6880 1,100 — — (200) 900

New Share Option Scheme

10th September 2002 10th September 2002 to 9th September 2012 HK$0.4000 — 4,000 (4,000) — —

30th September 2002 30th September 2002 to 29th September 2012 HK$0.3900 — 6,500 (6,500) — —

20,900 10,500 (10,500) (6,200) 14,700
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32 RESERVES
Movements were:

Consolidated

Cumulative

foreign

Capital Asset currency

Share redemption Capital revaluation Other translation Retained Proposed

premium reserve reserve reserve reserves adjustments profit dividends Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

As at 1st April 2001 281,570 22,811 58,355 53,701 301 (2,313) 125,088 81,716 621,229

Profit attributable to

shareholders — — — — — — 10,110 — 10,110

Premium arising from

issue of shares upon

exercise of warrants

(see Note 30) 1 — — — — — — — 1

Repurchase of shares

(see Note 29) (276) 307 — — — — (307) — (276)

Change in fair value of

long-term investments — — — (54,773) — — — — (54,773)

Proposed dividends

— interim dividend — — — — — — (6,390) 6,390 —

— final dividend — — — — — — (2,840) 2,840 —

Dividends paid — — — — — — — (88,106) (88,106)

Translation adjustments — — — — — (373) — — (373)

As at 31st March 2002 281,295 23,118 58,355 (1,072) 301 (2,686) 125,661 2,840 487,812

Profit attributable to

shareholders — — — — — — 60,412 — 60,412

Premium arising from

issue of shares upon

exercise of warrants and

employee share options

(see Notes 30 & 31) 3,085 — — — — — — — 3,085

Repurchase of shares

(see Note 29) (47,795) 53,117 — — — — (53,117) — (47,795)

Change in fair value of

long-term investments — — — (12,089) — — — — (12,089)

Release upon disposal of

a long-term investment — — — 563 — — — — 563

Proposed final dividend — — — — — — (18,111) 18,111 —

Dividends paid — — — — — — — (2,840) (2,840)

Translation adjustments — — — — — 30 — — 30

As at 31st March 2003 236,585 76,235 58,355 (12,598) 301 (2,656) 114,845 18,111 489,178
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